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Guardian Media Group ple

Strategic Report

The directors’ present their strategic report, the repart of the directors and the-audited financial statements for the
Group, comjrising the Gitardian Media Group plc (the. "Company”) and its subsidiaries ("the-Group"), for the
year ended 28 March 2021.

4

Activities and business review
Guardian Media Group ple (GMG) is the parent company of the Guardian News and Media business (GNM), one
of the world's leading news publishing organisations.

The Group has a portfolio of investments which are held in an endowment fund to -generate returns to secure the
long term fiiture of the Guardian.

‘GMG's.sole shareholder is The Scott Trust Limited, whose coré purpose:is to secure the financial and.editorial
‘indepéndence.of the Guardian, in perpetuity,

Further information on the activities -of the Group can be found on the Guardian Media Group website:
www.theguardian.com/gmg.

Strategy and future outlook:

:2020/21 was.a'challenging year in which the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic-accelerated many of the structural
trends in our market, particularly in newsstand salés and advertising. N

During this period Guardian journalism remained exceptionally strong. We coveréd the pandemic with
journalism~rooted in stierice, providing a .series of investigations that exposed mishandling by the UK
government, and published 1mpactful global news-and features _coverage. The US presidential election provided
another key moment for. Guardian journalism  (and our most-read article ever in the form’ of our US election
interactive), and our miltimedia journalism continued ‘to-break new ground, with one of the UK’s leadmg daily
news podcasts in Today in Focus, and Guardlan documentary Collette achievingan Oscar nomination.for Best
Short Documentary, and going on to win in April 2021. We saw record lévels of online traffic and engagement
which tianslated into strong financial support from.readers.

In this context, we annouriced a new strategic and financial plan tod staff, which emphasised long-term investment
in high-quality journalism and trusted feader relationships - growing both the reach and impact of our journalism
and our digital reader revenues on a global basis. This plan builds on the successful long-term growth. of-onr
international operations and reader rélationship strategy.

The financial results for 2020/21 reflect the quality of Guardian journalisr, the agility and resilience of staff to
adapt to the circumstances presented during the year and the initial impact of the new strategy.

Total Tevenue'(£225.5 million), was up slightly on the prior year (£223.5 million). Digital reader revenues
performed especially well (up 61,3%) during the pandexmc, driven by growth in both digital subscriptions and
reader contributions, which helped to offset steep declines in print, advertising and jobs revenue,

Strong growth in our internatjonal revenues, primarily from the US, Australia and Europe, also hélped to mitigate
structural pressures in other areas, with revenue from outside of the UK growing by 25.5% in the year. More than
half of ourdigital reader revenues now come from outside the UK.

Costs were significantly lower year-on-year given reductions iii print, marketing and staff costs. Wlth reference to
the latter, the tough but necessary strategic restructuring programme resulted in around 125 members of staff
taking redundancy the vast majority of which ivere voluntary This programme was focussed on those areas of
the business most impacted by sustained strictural shifts in the market, creating headroom for future investment
in activities which will drive editorial engagement and associated reader revenues.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Strategic Rep ort X .

As a result of this: disciplined cost management and largely flat revenues, adjusted net operating cash outflow
(£15.6 mﬂhon) was reduced and remains within the funding target set by the Scott Trust. (£25.0 million). The
business is well-posntloned to deliver upon a long-term reader-focused. strategy which will see returns generated
from the investments in journalism, digital products, customer management. capabilities and supporting data
platforms.

The Guardian is a powerful, globally respected brand with a growing and onal audience. It is uniquely placed in
the marketas an mdependent news organisation that delivers high quality, investigative -Jjournalism with global
impact. As such, thé Group is well positioned to grow.and deliver on its strategy.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Group's approach to risk nianagement is coritained in the Corporate Governance Report which can be found
on the Guardian Media Group website: www.thegnardian. com/gmg within the. annual ﬁnanc1al reports section.

An assessment of the principal risks facing the Group has been carried out, mdudmg emergmg risks, that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. The risks outlined below are those that we
believe will have the greatest near or miedium term impact o1 our strategic ob]ectlves, operational -plans and
reputation,

The Group is.exposed to significant external risk in the form of economic uncertainty arising from the. COV‘ld~19
‘pandemlc and the UK’s departure from the EU, lower barriers to entry in digital news formats and inéreasing
-competition for subscription revenues, which présent risks to its financial sustainability,. market share and
endowment fund, The pandemic has also accelerated existing structural shifts in the market. The Group. is
mitigating these risks through placingjournalism and reader relationships at the, heart of its business strategy.

The strategy includes. reallgmng its'operating riodel to reflect a reader-centric strategy, increased investment in
journalism and pioduct offerings, development of industry leading data capabilities and continued. development
of deep, personalised and trusted relationships with our readers. We:continue to mitigate risks associated with
investment performance through diversified medium’ and long term investments. managed by specialist fund
managers.’

Trust in our brand and reputation is also critical to ‘our ongomg success. Any event ot incident affecting our
reputation. could impact our strategic objectives. To mitigate this risk, the: Gréup adheres to comprehenswe
editorial and commercial legal policies, and manages its- reputation proactively throughout-the business. The
Group is committed: to meeting the highest standards of verified social and environmental performance; public
transparency and legal accountability.as a ceitified B Corporation.

We have this year, for:the first time,.included a principal risk relating to environmental sustainability to reﬂect
increasing’ regulanon in this area. We have already taken 51gn1ﬁcant action in response to the climate crisis,
including mapping our greenhouse gas emissions across our-entire supply ‘chain; with the ambition of achieving
net zero emissions by 2030, with a commitment to completely eliminating at least two thirds. Our commitments
- aré also reflected in our investment strategy.

The Group is at'risk from business interruption arising frormi cyber security threat. To mitigate this risk, we have
adopted the National Institute of Standards and. Technology {NIST) ‘Cybersecurity Framework to formally align. .
our orgamsa‘nona] objectives, risk appetite and resources with cyber security outcomes. We-are also exposed to an
evolving ] pnvacy landscape and are mmgatmg this through specialist teams, governance enhancements and
improved ‘integration in the working practices of our operational and compliance teams.

Viability statement

The board has reviewed. the prospects. of the Group over the three-year period to March 2024 taking account of
the company’s strategic plans; a number of financial scenarios and further stress testing based on its principal
risks:

. Based on the results of these procedures, .and considering the endowment fund and ongoing support from the
Scott Trust, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continué in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period ending March 2024.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Strategic Report

Operating and financial performance
The results for the Group are set out in thie consolidated income statement.

4

The current financial year is a 52 week period (2020: 52 weeks).
Key indicators of financial performance-are:

‘2021 2020
\ £m £m
Revenug: . ' 225.5 2235
Digital reader revenue ) ) 68.7' 42.6
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) ) 34 (14.6)
Adjusted net-operating cash flow . . (15.6) - {(29.0)
Cash and endowment fund 1,148.5 954.2

Group revenue increased 0.9% to. £225.5 million (2020 £223 5 million) with contmued growth from digital
reader revenues (across contributions and subscnptlons) which increased by 61.3% to-£68.7 million (2020: £42.6
million) offsettmg sustained declines in advertlsmg‘revenues and newsstand salés. .

Adjusted operating profit, represents. non-exceptional statutory operating profit adjusted to exclude dépreciation
and amortisation but include depreciation on right-of-use assets and interest on leases - which relate to propetty
costs incurred by the group. Management believes this measure most accurately reflects the underlymg operating
performance of the business. A reconciliation of this measure is provided in note 6.

Details of exceptional items can be found.in note'10 to the financial statements.

Cash flow

Adjusted net operating cashi flow is the primary target for the Group in terms:of financial- sustamablhty This
represents cash items that ' management corisider to be key in the operations of the business, This is calculated as
statutory net cash flow adjusted for the folloving items: exclusion of loans to the Group's parent company for
investing purpose, transactions/development and cash injections/withdrawals relating to the ; group endowment
fund investments al] of which are presented as other cash items. A réconciliation of this measure is-provided in
note 6.

The primary firiancial goal set for GMG in 2020/21 was for Group adjusted net operating cash outflows to remain
below £25.0 million, in line with-the expected. long-term returns from the Scott Trust Endowment Fund. This
target has been achieved forthe year, with an adjusted net operating cash outflow of £15.6 million, compared to
£29.0 million in 2019/20. Looking ahead, we-will continue to.seek efficiencies in our operating’ business in order
to allow further headroom to fund investment in augmenting the reach and impact of our journalism.

Other inflows-and outflows are detailed in the consolidated statemeétit of cash flows,

Cash and endowment fund

The Guardian is supported by the Scott Trust Endowment Fund, consisting of diversified medium and long term

focussed investments managed’ by a number ‘of specialist fund managers. The investments include global and

emerging markets ‘equity,.-fixed income, hedge funds and private equity and venture capital funds. Whilst the

investmerits are a mixture of UK and non-UK assets, they are all'held by UK tax resident companies which are.

fully subject to UK tax laws and regulations on the income and realised gains arising from all the investments
]

held. B

The value of the fund and other cashholdmgs stands at £1,148.5 million (2020: £954.2 million). The increase in

the value of these holdings reflects the growth in valuation of investments’ following the significant declines iii the

prior year due t6 the deﬂauonary impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Strategic Report

.

Taxation

The Group has subsidiaries in the. UK, US and Australia and is subject to the tax laws and regulations in these
countries. The subsidiaries also pay tax in certain other overseas territories where business activities take place

The £16.8 million tax charge for the year (2020: £0.6 million charge) includes a £18.6 million charge (2020: £3.7
-million charge) before exceptional items and a £1.2 million credit (2020: £3.1 million: credit) on exceptional
items,

The net deferred tax liability in the balance sheet is £15.2 million (2020: £nil). The net position consists of
deferred tax assets:of £17.6 million (2020: £5.6 million) relating to accelerated capital allowances, £1.0 million
relating to short term timing differences (2020: £0.2million deferred tax liability) and £13.9 million (2030: £5.4
million) rélating to tax losses available to.be usedin the future, les§ deferred tax liabilities of £47.7 million (2020:
£10.8 million) arising on investments 4t fair value through profit and loss.

Other balance sheet items
The Group.had net assets of £1,138.1.million at 28 March 2021 (2020: £961.7 million).

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Group has committed to reaching net:zero carbon emission by-2030. Following a complete audit of current.
carbon emissions.and supply chain the group has set.a clear path with a more specific commitment to eliminate

two thirds of emissions by 2030. For the remainder, it will seek to remove equivalérit carbon emiissions using high

q_ua]ify‘, verifiable schemes. :

The targets were set in line with the Paris Agreemert and the gmdelmes set out by the Intergovemmental Panel
on Climate Change (IPCC), which. call for greenhouse gas emissions to be all but eliminated by 2050 in otdei to
limit global heating to within 1.5 degrees of pre-industrial levels. ‘

To this end GMG measures its overall emissions according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard Corporate Standard | Greenhouse Gas Protocol (ghgprotocol org), a comprehensive
global standardised framework to measure-and manage greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.We have worked with
Green Element, an environmental.consultancy, to measire and report global emissions, as weéll as incorporating
analysis by academics at the University of Bistol on the carbon ‘impact, of digital services.

In this report GMG repoits the enérgy and GHG émissions figures according to the UK .government. mandatory
reporting specification Streamlined. Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR):

Our greenhouse gas. emissions calculation methodology adheres to the' Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard Revised Edition (2015),, which covers the: -accouinting and reporting of seven
greenhouse ‘gases covered by the Kyoto Protocol - carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous. oxide (N20),
hydrofluoracarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PCFs), sulphur hexafluoride (SF6) and nitrogen trifluotide (NF3).

Overall emissions have -decreased because building cccupancy, business travel and employee commuting has
reduced because of Covid-19 restrictions. However, gas emissions have increased due’to increased ventilation
requirements due to Covid-19.

o

{
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Guardian Media Group plc

Strategic Repbrt

Energy consumption-used (KWh)
Electricity

Gas

“Transport fuel

Other energy sources

Emissions.(tCOze)

Scope 1
Emissions from combustion of gas
Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes

’

Scope 2
'Emissions from purchased electricity - location based : o
Emissions fiom purchased electricity - market based

Scope 3 ) '
‘Emissions from business travel in.rentl catsor employee vehicles where
company is responsible for. purchasing the fuel

Emissions from upstream transport and distribution losses and
excavation and transport of fu€ls - locatior based

Emissions from upstream transport and distribution losses and
excavation and transport of fuels - market based

TOTAL locationi-based
TOTAL market-based

Intensity
Revenue £m (Global)

Intensity ratio: tCO2e from Scope 1, 2 and 3 (fuel for business travel only)
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2021
UK

3,005,458
2,041,490
103,893

375:4

7907

75

32.2

266.0-

511

1,374.2
466.2

225.5
2.07

2020

4,615,134
1,489,615

1,558,;198.0

. 2739

1,179.9
9.3
364.8
413.1

136.6

2,231.4
784.6

223.5
3.51




Guardian Media Group plc
Strategic Report

Section-172 of the Companies Act

The Directors of Guardian Media -Group ple (including principal UK subsxdlary Guardian News & Media Limited)
must act in accordance with a set of general duties. These duties are detailed in the Companies Act 2006 and
include in Section 172 the requirement that .a director:of a company must. actin the way they consider, in good
faith, would most likely promote the success of the company for the benéfit of itsstakeholders.

In doing this, the director must have regard amongst other matters, to:

« the hke]y consequences of any decisions in thelong term;

+ the interests of the company’s employees,

« theneed to foster the company ’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
» the impact of the conipany’s. operations on the community-and environment;

o the company’s reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

» the need to act fairly as between niembers of the company.

Examples of how the Directors take into account the likely consequences of decisions in the-long term, build
relationships with stakeholders, engage ‘with employeas, understand the impact of Group’s operations -oh
communities and the environinent, and attribute importance to behaving as an ethical and responsible business
include the following:

The Group i$a certified B Corporation, meetmg a threshold of ethical standards across a range of areas across the
business including environmental, workers;. governance, community and customer impact. B Corporationis aim to
balance profit with people and the planet, and these principles influence business decision making.

In October 2020 the Group formally adopted -a revised GMG Governiance Code to ensure the highest levels of
corporate governance in accordance with the values of the Guardian. The new code stays close to the 2018 Listed
Company Code, whicli places-a greater emphasis. on stakeholder voice and employee’ engagement diversity, a
greater focus on corporate citlture, as well as greater transparency of board and directors’ activities.

“The Group is committed to engaging with our employees. Senior executives brief employees. verbally and in
writing on business. performance and other key: business iSsues on a regular basis. We have several forums
through which employees and management can rijse questions and discuss any issues. These. include an
employee. forum, a diversity -and inclusion forum, and a. sustainability forum, each of which meet with
management at.least four times per year.

Employees are also represented on a staff remuneration consultation forum, diséussing matters around pay,
benefits and otlier HR policiés and initiatives with -éxecutives' and board. members. The Guardian Iifestyle
Pension Plan. trustees also includes three, staff representatives. We' maintain regular dialogue with two trade
unions, both of which have.formal representation'in our empldyee and remuneration forums.

The G\_xardlan Lifestyle Plan replaced the old ethical fund with The Sustainable Future Fund. The new investment
fund has a-greater responsibility to the environment and societal impact - explicitly excluding companies
associated with fossil fuel, controversial ‘weapons, tobacco producers, and those in breach of UN Global Compact.
It also pnontlses mvestmentm companies that actively contribute to a greener economy

Dutinig the pandemic périod the Groiip was acutely aware of the impact this could have on mental health and put
in place.a range of mental health initiatives to. support staff. This included a new hub of resources focused.on
{ mental health and wellbeing, mandatory workshops, and a series of events and workshops on mental health, as
weéll as the existing freé-employee assistance programmes.

The Group takes diversity, equity and inclusion sex:iously and ‘duri,n'g"this time has establishgad a Race Steering
Committee which is now chaired by the Chief Executive and Editor:in Chief. The committee, composed of
Guardian -staff from arouxd the wortld, raises awareness of race equahty across the Guardidn; monitors the
Gitardiar’s performanceg in relation tg.its race action plan and holds senior executives and managers to account
for-actions related to therace action plan.

Due to the pandemic the Group delayed its reporting on gender and ethnicity pay for 2020, in line with-extended.
deadlines offered by the. UK govérnment.
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Guardian Media Group ple

Strategic Rép ort

We régularly meet and consult with our. suppliers and other partners on our commercial and environmental
strategies. In the past 12 months, discussions have particularly focused on reducmg our environmental expdsure
.through our-print operations.and supply chain, .

The Group engages regularly with Guardian'and Observer readers in a range of ways.including email, virtual and
.in-person events, through our letters pages, moderated comments on our digital platforms; and through our
independent readers’ editor. Work is ongoing to improve the custoiner journey and ensure readers are offered the
easiést and best way to enjoy and support Guardian journalism,

The Guardian’s 200th birthday in May 2021 was celebrated for staff'and readers - marking the importance of 200
years of Guardian Joumahsm and the people who have helped to create and support it. A commemorative plaque
has been placed on the site of C.P Scott’s office on Cross Street, Marichester, to mark the Guardian’s history with
the city of Manchester and to provide a focal point for the community, Staff were awardegd a special thank you and.
a roster-of special journalism and reader engagement connected Guardian readers.

Through funding provided by GMG and the Scott Trust, the Guardian Foundation runs a number of programmes,
mcludmg an international capacity building’ programme for independent media under threat; initiatives to
increase media literacy among young people; awards to celebrate young Joumahsm, and bursanes which enable
‘talented students from. under-represented backgrounds to study Joumahsm and gain paid work placements at the
Guardian. The pandemic: has affected our ability to déliver in-person. progiammes but where possible we adapted
to online.

\

As part bf‘oursmtegic Testructuring programme, in order to reposition the organisation better for future growth
opportunities. we undertook difficult but necessary reorganisations in a number of departments-which resulted in
around 125 members of staff being made redundant - the majority via voluntary processes.

Dunng the financial year, .at the start of the pandemic the Group made use of the Coronavirus Job Reténtion
Scheme, (furlough scheme) and claimed £1.6m (2020: £nil). of government grants. The Group subsequently made
the decision to return all of the money received through this $upport package to HMRC.on a voluntary basis, ds
revenues-proved more robust 4nd resilient than forecast at the outset of the pandemic. The money was repaid in
April 2021,

t

On behalf of the Board

Keith Underwood . N
Director

6-July 2021

Guardian Media Group plc
Registered in England and Wales No.00094531

1
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Guardian Media Group plc

Directors' Report

The directors present their report and the andited corisolidated financial stateménts for the year ended 28 March
2021, .

Employee involvement -

‘The Group-systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them
or-théir representatives regularly, so that their-views can be taken into account when making decisions that are
likely to affect their intetrests. Emplcyee involvemert in the Group is ‘encouraged, as achieving a common.
awareness on the. part of all employees of the. financial and economic factors affecting the Group plays a major
role in maintaining it. The Group encourages the involvément of employees by means of regular communication
programmes to the Group as a whole delivered by senior management, frequent internal e-mail and intranet
updatesand quarterly all staff financial results briefings.

The Group is committed to-a working environment where our staff, clients and pariners are treated equally. We
aspire that our Group staffing at all levels. reflects our values, based on egual opportunities for all employees;,
irrespective of gender; race, religion, disability, social background age, -sexual orientation, pregnancy &
parenthood, gender reassignment or marital status. The.Group -gives full and fair consideration. to applications for
-employment from disabled ‘persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes’ and abilities. Appropnate'
arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career:development and promotxon of.
disabled persons employed by the Group If members of staff become: dlsabled we support individuals to continie

provided as. necessary

Ownership

Guardian Media Group plc is a public limited company incorporated in Engl'and and Walés and all the orditiary
shares are owned by The Scott Trust Limited. The Company is doiniciled in England and Wales and its registered
-address is'PO Box 68164, Kings Place; 90 York Way, London N1P.2AP.. -

Directors of the Group s

Thie-directors, who held office during the period and up to the date of signing, unless otherwise stated, were as
follows:

Neil Berkett-- Chairman

Anpette Thomas (resigned 1 July 2021)

Katharine Viner

Keith Underwood (appointed 6 July 2020) .

Jennifer Duvalier
Anders Jensen
Yasmin Jetha

Nigel Morris
Baroriess Gail Rebuck
‘Rene Rechtman '
Coram Williams

No director had any material transactions with the Group other than those'set.out in note 12 and.note 30.

Dividends
On 16 March 2021 the GMG plc Board declared a. dividend of 33.3p (2020; 30.6p) per share on the ordinary share
capital amounting to £300,000-(2020: £275,000) which was paid to The.Scott Trust Limited on 16 March-2021.

Corporate governance

The. Group's report on corporate governance can be found on: the Guardian Media Group website:
www.theguardian.com/gmg within the annual financial reports'section.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Directors' Report

1

Section 172 of the Companies:Act
Reporting in accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act i is presented in the Strategic Report.

Gomg concern
The financial position of the Group, its.cash flows and liquidity position are described in the strategic report.

In addition, note 4 to the financial statemerits includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
ianaging its ¢apital; its financial risk mdnagement objectives; deétails of its financial instruments and hedging
activities; and its exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and cash floiv risk.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to continue.in operational éxistence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue. to
adopt the-going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Directors' confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

+ so far as the diréctor is aware, there-is no relevant audit information ot‘ which the company’s auditors- are
unaware; and

+ they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as-a director in order to make themselves aware.of
any relevant audit iriformation and to establish that the company’s.auditors are aware of that information,

Events after the reporting year

There have been rio significant events between the balance sheet date and the date of-approval of these financial
statements.

Future developments i
Future developments have been discussed in the strategic report.

Directors' liabilities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a. quahfymg
third,party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force
throughout the last finaficial year. and is currently in force. The Group also purchased and maintained throughout
the financial year directors' and officers' liability insurance in respect of itself and its directors.

_Approved ,by the Board on 6 July 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Keith Underwood /
Director

Guardian Media Group plc
Registeredin England and Wales No 00094531
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Guardian Media Groupplc
Statement of Directors’' Responsibilities ,

The directors. are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and. the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law'and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements. in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice. (United Kingdom Accountmg Standards, comprising FRS 101 ‘Reducéd Disclosure
Framework!, and applicable law).

Under company law the directors must }mt approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give-a true and fair view of the state of affalrs of the company and of the profit-or loss. of the company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

« selectsuitable-accounting policies-and apply them consistently;

«. state wliether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS- 101, have been followed,
subject to-any material departures disclosed and éxplained in the financial statements;.

N

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern. basis unless it is inapproptiate to presume that the.
company will continue in business.

The directors.are responSIble for keepmg adequate accounting records that are sufficient-to show and explain the’
company's transactions -and disclose- with reasonable accuracy-at any time the financial position of the-company
and enable them to-ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act-2006:

The directors are also responsiblé for saféguarding the assets of the.company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Guardian Media Group plc

3

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardian Media Group
plc

Opinion on the financial statements-
In our opinion the financial statements:

» gived true and fair view of the state of the. Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 28 March 2021
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

» the Group. financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;,

+ the Parent Company financial statements-have been. propetly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted -Accounting Practice and as applied in accordance with the-provisions of the. Companies
Act 2006; and a

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We. hdve audited the financial statements of Guardian Media Group ple (“th,e‘ Parent company”) and .its
subsidiaries (“the Group™) for the year ended 28 March 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, Consolidated Staterent of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statément of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statément of Cash Flows, Company Statement .of
Financial Position, Company Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to-the financial statements, mcludmg a
summary of sxgmﬁcant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has.been applied in their
preparation is applicable lawand interndtional accounting standards in conforrmty with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, is.applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (United Kingdom ‘Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) as applied in accordance with the
provisions-of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We.conducted our audit in accordance with Intematlona] Standards on Audltmg ux) (ISAs

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are:further described.in the .
Auditor’s. tesponsiblhtles”for the audit of thefinancial statements section of-our report. We believe that'the audit
evidence we have obtained.is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouf opinion.

JIndependence

We remdin independent ‘of the Group and the-Parent. Company in accordance with the .etixical requirements that
are relevant to our-audit of the financial statemerits in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled-our other ethical responsibilitiés in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern o
In auditing the financial statements, we have contluded that the Dirgctors’ use. of the going concern basis.of
accounting in thé preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditionis that, individually.or- collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements arée authcrised for issue.

Our fesponsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directers with respect to going concern.are desenbed in the
rélevant sections of this repoit.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardian Medxa Group
ple

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report.other:than the fihancial statements-and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statemets does not cover the other information and, except to the.extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express-any form.of assurarice conclusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other-information is materially inconsistent with the
financial stateimiénts or our knowledge obtained in the-course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be-materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or- apparent material misstatements, ‘we are required to
detérmiire whether-this gives rise to-a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is-a material misstatement of this other- mformatxon, we are
required to'report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strateglc Report and Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is-consistent with the firiancial statements; and

» the Strategic Report and Directors' Report have been prepated in accordance with appllcable legal
req\mements

In the light of the kriowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment-obtained in the course of
the audit, we:have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report tc you if, in our opinjon:

+ adeguate accounting. records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or réturis adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not-made; or
+ wehave not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsxbllmes of the Directors

As: explamed more fully in the Statement of Directors' Reésponsibilities, the Directors are responsnble for the
preparation of the financial statements;and for being satisfied that they give a true.and fair view, and for such
internal-control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatemient, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ‘Group’s and the Parent
Company's. abihty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accountmg unless the Directors either jintend to liquidate the Group or the
Parent Company or to cease operations; or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives.are to gbtain reasonable assurance about whethér the financial statements as a wlhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinioh.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements.can arise.from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the.basis-of these financial statéments.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularmes, including fraud, are instances-of non-compliance with laws and regulatxons ‘We design procedures:
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of !rregulamtles,

including fraud. The extent to: which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, iricluding fraud. is
detailed below:
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Guardian Media Group plc

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardian Media Group
plc

« Weidentify-and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,. whether due to fraud or
error, and then design and perform ‘audit procedures responsive to those risks, including cbtaining ‘audit
. evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

» We have.identified and assessed the poteritial risks related to irregilarities, including fraud, by considering
" the followmg
- enquiries of management regarding : the compliance with laws and regulaticns; the detection and response
to the risk of fraud and "any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and the controls in place to
mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
+ obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the. company operates. The key
laws considered ‘are international accounting standards.in conformity with the:Companies.Act 2006.

*+ We have responded to risks'identified by performmg procedures including the following:
« enquiry.of in-house mianagement concerning actual'and potential litigation and cldims;
. perforrnmg analytical procedures. to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships which may indicate
tisks of misstatement due to fraud; and .
- readmg_‘the mintites of meetings of those charged with governance.

+  We havealso considered the risk.of fraud through management override of controls by:
. testmg on a sample basis the. appropnateness of journal entries and other adjustiments;-and
«-assessing whether the judgeinents made in making accounting estimates.are indicative of potential bias;

Our audit procedures were ‘desigried to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognisirig that. the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is highei than the risk: of not
detectmg one resultmg from ertor, as fraud may involve delibérate ¢oncealment by, for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through collusion. Theré are.inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and
the further removed non-compliance with laws.and regulationis is from the events and transactions reflected in
-the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A'further description of our responsibilltxes is available on the Financial Repornng Council’s website at:.
://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of oiir auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely tothe Parent Company’s' members; as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has ‘been undertaken so that we: might state to the’ Compary’s
members those matters we.are required fo state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest: extent permitted by law, we do not ‘accept or assume. responsibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Compiany’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
Nide Marin

4A244A55A3444DF .,
Nicole Martin (Senior Statutory Auditor) N

For and on behalf of BDO LLP statutory auditor
London

06 July 2021
6.July 2021

BDO LLP is-a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Guardian Media Group plc

Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 28 March 2021

2021 ' 2020
Before 2021 ’ Before 2020
exceptional Exceptional 2021,  exceptional Exceptional 2020
items items Total items items Total
Note £m £in Em £m £m £m
Rt*:venue ' 5 '225.5 - 225.5 223.5 - 223.5
Raw materials and ! . '
consumables used 7 (10.3) v\ - (10.3) (16.7) - (16.7)
Staff costs 12 (121.0) (9.6) (130.6) (120.9) . (3:2) (124.1)
Depreciation and . ' :
amortisation . . .
expense 7 14 - (g) (93 - (9.3)
Other expenses 7 (81.8) (1:5) (83.3) _(92.8) 1.9 (90.9)
Operating . '
profit/(loss) 1.0 (11.4) (10.1) _(26:2) (.3) (17.5)
Finance:income . 24 - 2.4 4.1 - 44
Finance costs: (4.0) - (4.0) {2.7) - (2.7)
Net finance ‘ .
(cost)/income 8 (1.6) - (1.6) 1.4 - 1.4
Other gains and
losses 9 210.0 - - 210.0 (24.9) 4.8 (20.1)
:Share of loss of .
equity investments
in joist yentures and . S \
associates. , 7 (0.1) -~ (0.1) ~ (0.6) - {0.6)
Profit/(loss) N
beforetax - 209.3 (11.1) 198.2 . 0.3 3.5 (36.8)
Income tax . .
(expense)/credit 13 (18.0) 1.2 (16.8) (3.7) 31 (0.6)
Profit/(loss) for the ' _ _ o
period : 10913 (9.9) 181.4 (44.0) 6.6 (37.4)

The above results were derived from continuing o‘pératidns;
Exceptional items are detailed in note 10:

!

The notes on pages 21 to.62 form an iritegral partof these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc. | _ .

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 28

March 2021

R Note
Profit/(loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income/(expense):

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
orJoss

Actuarial loss on defined. benéfit pension schemes before tax 29
Income tax effect i3

Items that inay be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Foreign currency translation losses.

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the period

The notes on pages 21 to 62 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021, 2020
£m £m

1814 (37-4)
6:9) (1.5)

1.2 0.3
(5.2) (1.2)
05 (0.4).
176.7 (39.0).




Guardian Media Group plc

(Registration number: 00094531)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Posulon as at 28 March 2021

3

Assets’

Non-currént assets

Property, plantand equp‘ment

Intangible assets

Right-of-use.assets

Investments:in joint ventures

Investments held at fair-value through profit or loss
Unlisted shares

Retirement benefit assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and ather receivables:

Income tax.asset

Cash and-cash equivalents-

Investiments-held at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Other financial assets

Liabilities

Current Habilities

. Trade and other payables

Other current financial liabilities
Provisions .

Current portion of long term lease liabilities.

‘Net current assets

Total'assets less ¢urrent liabilities

Non-current liabilities.
Retirement benefit obligations
Provisions '

Longxerm lease liabilities.

Net asséts

‘The notes on pages 21 to 62 form dn integral part of these financial statéments.
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Note

14

15
16
17
18
18
29

19
20

.21

18

18

22

B8 &

23
13
24

, 2021 2020 °
£m £m
2.7 3.4
2.2 5.5
62.8 68.8
- 01
1,015.7 814.7
0.2 0.2
‘- 1.5
1,083.6 894.2
0.4 0.4
61.9 58.7
0.6 -
53.7 41.8
77.2 i04.5
1.9 -
105.7 2054
36.5 44.9
- 6.8
10.3 4.5
8.2 9.9
55.0 66.1
140.7 139.3
1,224.3 ‘1,03335
4.8 -
5.4 6.0
152 -
60.8 65.8
86.2 71.8
1;138'.1 961.7




Guardian Media Group plc

(Registration number: 00094531) _
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 28 March 2021

2021 2020
Note £m £m
Equity ' ’
Share capital - 25 0.9 . 09
Revaluation:reserve : . 0.7 0.7
Other reserves ‘ ) : 0.1 0.1
Retained earnings, > 1,136.4 960.0
Equity attributable to owners of the company 1,138:1 961.7

These finaricia] statements were approved by the Board on 6 July 2021 and:signed on its behalf by:

Keith Underwood
Director,

The notes on pages 21 to 62 forman integral part of these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 28

March 2021

At 30.March 2020

Profit for the period
’ Other comprehensive
expense
Total comprehénsive profit
Dividends

At 28 March 2021

At1April 2019

Loss for the period

. Other comprehensive
income (restated)

Total comprehensive
income

Dividends

Reserves adjustinent (note
2) ' .

- At 29 March 2020

Share Revaluation Other __ Retained
capital reserve reserves earnings Total equity
£m £m £m £m £m
0.9 07 0.1 960.0 961.7
- - 181.4 181.4
- - - (4.2 4.2
- - - 176.7- 176.7
- - - (6.3) (0.3)
0.9 0.7 0.1 1,136.4 1,138.1
Share Revaluation Other Retained . »
capital reserve reserves earnings Total equity
£m £m £m £ £m
0.9 0.7 01 1,000.0 1,001.7
. - - (37.4) (374)
s - - (1.6) (1.6)
, - - - (39.0) (39.0)
- - - (0.3) (0.3)
- - - (0.7) (0:7)
0.9 0.7 0.1 960.0 961.7

The notés on pages 21 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Guardian Media Group plc

ro-

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 28 March 2021

‘
~

. Note

Cash flows from operating activities

‘Cash used in operations 27
"‘Income taxes paid

Neétcash used in gperating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of intangible asséts s 15

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments held at FVTPL 18

Sale of investments held at FVTPL 18

‘Interest received

Net ¢ash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing'activitiés

Lease payments: ' - 24
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash €quivalents at .30 March

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 28 March . 21

The notes on pages 21'to 62 form an integral part of these financial statements:
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2021 2020
£E£m £m
(5.8) (30.8)
(0.6) -
(6.4) (30.8)
- (4.6)
(1.4) (2.5)
- 7-4
(164.4) (308.2)
194.3 " 3383
0.1 0.4
28.6 30.8
(10.0) (7.9)
12.2 (7.9)
41.8 50.1
(0.3). (0.4)
53.7 41.8



‘Guardian Media Group plc

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

1 General information: k
The company is an unlisted: public company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in England and
Wales: -

The.address of its registered office is:

PO Box 68164

Kings Place

‘90 York Way

London

N1P 2AP

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 6 July 2021.

2 Accountirig policies

Summary of s1gmﬁcant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal.accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
‘policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intérnational Financial Rep‘ortiug
Standards (IFRS) dnd IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly IFRIC) mterpretatxbns as adopteéd for usein the
Eurépean Union and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006.applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.
The.consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historicil cost basis, except for certain assets
and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and defined benefit pension plans.

The preparation of*financial statements in conform1ty with IFRS requlres the use of certdin critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group [
accounting policies. The areas involving 4 higherdegrée of judgement or complexlty, or areas where assumptioris
-and estimdtes are significarit to the consohdated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

v

A}

Reserves adjustment

An amount of £0. .7m was posted thiouigh the prioryéar Statement of Changes in Equity to correct an immaterial
error.identified arising on the:adoption of IFRS 15.

Changes in accounting po)icy

New standards, amendments and interpretatibns not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the finaricial statements, there are no new standards, amendments and

interpretations issued by the TASB, but not.yet . applicable that will have a sngmﬁcant impact on the consolidated
finanéial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statemerits of the Company and its. subsidiary
undertakings drawn up to 28 March 2021, with the excepnon of GNM Australia Pty Limited which has a financial
year to 31 March 2021 as its reporting date The Groups joint venture. Ozone Project Limited has a financial
feporting date of 31 December, results for the year to 31 March 2021 are used for consolidation purposes. The
impact-of these non-coterminous year ends is not considered material. The financial statements of the Group are
‘made up-to the Sunday closest to 31 March each year. Consequently, the financial statemerits for the currént year
cover the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2021 and for'the comparative year cover the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2020.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statéments for the year ended 28 March 2021

Subsidiaries-are all éntities over which the Group. has control. Control is achieved where the company has the
pover to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits:from its activities.

Inter-company transacuons balanceés -and unrealised gains on' transactions between the company and its
subsidiaries, which are related partles, are éliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also: éliminated but may- indicate an -impairment that requires Tecognition in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recogmtlon

Revenue is recognised in the dccounting period when control of the sold product has been transferred, dt an
amount that reflects the consideration-to- which the. entity expects to be entitled in exchange for fulﬁllmg its
performance obligations to custorners. .

The principles in IFRS.are applied torevenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:
1. Identify the contracts with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations.in the‘contract,

* 3. Determine-the transaction pnce

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the ¢ontract
5. Recognise revenue when.or as the entity satisfies its performance obhgahons

The application of the principles results in the followmg

Reader reveriues

Revenue from coritributions is recognised as revenue upon receipt of funds.

Membership and subscription revenue.is recognised on a straight-lirie basis over the life' of the subscription.
Réventie associated with voucher schemes is deferred based on estimated redemption rates and recognised as the
vouchers are used or expire. .

Subscription reévenue from the provision of content via dlgltal platforms is recognised gross.of ‘platform provider
commission when the Group retains decisions over pricing and marketing strategy and is recognised nét of

platform provider commiission when the Group does not retain these.

Newsstand. (circulation) revenue (net.of returns) is recognised on publication in revenue in the consolidated
incoime statement and in trade receivables on the consolidated balance sheet. -

Advertising \

Pritit advertising révenue is recognised on publication. Online advertising is recogmsed as page-impressions are
served or evenly over the: period, depending on the terms of the contract. Income from advance billings is
deferred and released to revenue when-conditions for its recognition have been fulfilled.

Other revenue

Marketing services revenue is recognised as obligations-are met or upon completion of the contract.

Philanthropic revenue is recognised as per IAS200na gross basis as it is considered this reflects the nature of the
transactions. Revenue is. deferred .and 1s recognised in line with when costs have been incuired for a nil

contribution.

Royalty revenue is recogniséd for once right of se of the Group's conterit has been granted to customets.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

Going concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has -adequate resources in the endowment fund and
cash balances held to continue in operational existence for the next year and the foreseeable future, The directors
have considered the impact of Covid-19 in this assessment of both the future operational performance along with
the value of its resources. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis..

Jointventures

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements: Under IFRS 11 investménts-in joint arrangements are
classified as either joiiit operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has:assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determmed them to be joint ventures.

A company is treated as a joint venture when the Group holds an interest on a long-term: basis and jointly
controls the company with one or more-parties.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share of post acqmsltxon profits or losses is included in the consolidated.income
statement. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds. its interest in‘the joint venture,
mcludmg any ‘unsecured receivables, the Group does. not recognise further losses, unless it, has mcurred
obligations ormade payments on behalf 6f the undertakings concerned-

Exceptional items:

The separate reporting of non-recurring exceptional items helps to provide an indication of the Group’s
underlying business performance. These items. are usually transforinative-in nature resulting in future changes:to
the business opeérations or as a result of significant legislative changes whereby any one-off impact of the
legislation on the financial statements impacts the view of the underlying performance.

Finance income and costs *
Income from bank and short-term deposits is included in the financial statements when receivable using the
effective interest. method.

Dividends receivable are recognised in the financial statements when the shareholder's- nght to receive 2 payment-is
established.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

The consolidated financial statements are: presented “in Sterling, which is the funcnonal and presentational
cutrericy of the parent company, Guardian Media Group ple.

The results and financial position of all Gioup entities (none of whifh ha$ the currency of'a hyperinflationary
economy) that have:a functional currency other than Sterling are translated into-Sterling as follows: ’

- dssets-and liabilities. denominated in foreign currency are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the year
end; and

- income and expense items of overseas. subsidiaries ‘are translated at the. average .rate of exchange for the
financial year-.

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed. in forelgn curreiicies aré translated into Sterling at market forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Transactions.in foreign currency are converted to: Sterling at the rate
ruling at the date of the transaction at contractual rates. .

Tax

‘The tax expense for the, period compnses current.and deferred tax. Tax is recoghised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items récognised in other comprehensive income ot directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current. income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been substantively
enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the group operates and generates.taxable income.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the: liability method, on temporary differences ansmg between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amoiints in the:consolidated financial statements. Deferred .
income tix is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferied income tax-asset, is realised or the
deférred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities are not recogmsed if they arise. from -the initial
recoghition of goodwill;: deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises.from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in.a transaction other than a business combination that at the time-of the trarsaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit ot loss.

Deferred incorne tax assets dre recognised only to the extent that it is. probable that future taxable profits will be
available-against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arlsmg on investments in subsidiaries and.associates;
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is‘controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. '

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax .
assets againist current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority-on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entitiés where there'is
an intention to settle the balances.on a net basis..

Deferred tax assets and liabilities requn:e management Judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised..
Ini particular, significant ]udgement is used when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets should be
recogmsed with consideration given tothe timing and level of future taxable income:

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant -and equipment is stated at cost less. accumulated depreclatton and xmpalrment losses. Cost
comprises the purchase price of the asset.and directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Land and buildings are written off over their éstimated useful lives or 50 years, whichever.is:the shorter. Freehold
land is not depreciated. Depreciation of property; plant and equipment has been calculated to write off origiral
cost by-equal instalinents over the-estimated useful life of the assét concerhed. Depréciation is charged to the‘
consolidated income statement on assets from the'time they become operatlonal

“The-assets' residual valiies and usefil lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date..

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
cifcuinstances suggest that their ca.rrymg amount ‘may not be recoverable. When an impairment review is
undertaken, the recoverable amount is calculated as the net present value of expected future cash flows of the
relevant cash-generating unit. Impairment amounts are charged to the consolidated income statemient.

Assets that are bemg constructed for future use are ¢lassified as assets in the course of construction until such
time as they are brought into use by the Group. Assets in the course -of construction includes all directly
attributable expenditure including; borrowing costs. Upon complenon the assets are transfeired to the
appropriate catégory within ‘property, plant and equipment. No depreciation is charged on these items until after
they have been transferred.

Depreciation

The principal annual rates used for dépreciation are: )

Asset class ’ Straight line depreciation rate
Plant and vehicles . 6.7%-.50%

Fixtures; fittings and equipment 10% - 33% .
Buildings : ' 2% upwirds
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Guardian Media Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

Intangible assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whienever events or chang% in circumstances
indicate that the carrymg amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recogmsed for the-amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. In calculating value in use, futire cashi flows
are' discounted and adjusted for the directors’ assessment of risk. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs-of disposal'and value in use. The assessment of the reCOVerabihty of othier intangible
assets and the determination ‘of the amortisation profile involve a 51gmﬁcant degree of judgement based on
historical trends and management estimation of future potential economic benefits. An incorrect amartisation
profile could result in excess amounts being carried forward as intangible assets that would otherwise have been
written off to the consolidated iricome statement in ar earlier period, o

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Website and
other digital development costs.are capitalised only if all.of the following conditions are met::the asset created can
be identified; it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and the. development
cost can be measured reliably. Such:assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic life up
to a'maximum of two years. Where no asset can. be recogmsed development expendlture is chaiged to the
consolidated-income statement in the period-in which it is incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation-is provided on mtangible assets so as to write off the cost, less-any éstimated resldual value, over'
their expected useful economic life as follows:

_Asset.class ' Amortisation method and rate
Internally generated dlgltal assets straight line over 2:years.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.. Bank overdrafts are shown net
of cash gnd cash equivalents where the Group has the right of net settlement..Short-term funds that are managed
as part of the investment fund and are used solely in the acquisition and redemption of investments. are classified
as non-current. investments held at fair value through profit or loss-as management currently has no intention of
using them for funding the Group's.operations in the next finantial year.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at fair value upon recognition and then amortised cost after provision' for bad and
doubtful debts. The Group dpplies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to.measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and is conisidered immaterial..See note 20 for the net
carrying amount of the receivables arid associatéd ifnpairmént provision,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis. ,

Trade payables
Trade and other payables are recoginised initially at fair value and subsequently measured atamortised cost.

2

Borrowmgs

All borrowings are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs, Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction- costs, and the
amount due on redempnon being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of the relevant
borrowing:

‘Interest expense is reco‘g_nised on the basis 6f the effective interést method and is included in finarice costs.

Borrowings are-classified-as current liabilities unless- the company has an uncoriditional right to- defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 moantks after the reporting date.
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: Finmcia}‘i'nstruments'
Initidl recognition .

Financial assets and financial liabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial

position, although excluding property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, deferred
tax assets, prepayments, deferred tax liabilities and employee benefits plan.

"The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in the-statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Grdup, becomés party to the coritractual provisions of the financial instrument..

Financial assets are.initially recognised at fair value. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that:are directly attributable
to the financial liability.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified. as fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") aré recognised oh the trade date, i.e. the date on. which the Group commits to piirchase or
sell the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial ‘assets and financial liabilities are measured at either amortised cost
or fair value.

The endowment fund is accounted for based on information received to 31 March, adjustments are made for
material transactions that have occurred betweei this date and the Group's year end.

Classification and measurement

Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology;--

Financial assets-are- classnﬁed into orie of the following three categones -
- financial assets at amortised cost;
- financial assets at fair value’ t.hrough other compiehénsive income (FVTOCI), or
- financial assets at FVTPL.

Financial lidbilities are classified into one of the following two categories:-
ﬁnancxal liabilities at amortised cost;.or
-financial liabilities.4at FVTPL.

The classification and the basis for measurement: are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets; as detailed below:-

Financial assets at amortised cost A A
A financial asset is meastired at amortised cost if it meets botly of the following conditions-and ‘is not designated
as FVTPL:-

- the assets are held Within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cashi
flows; and

--the contractnal terms of the financial assets give rise on speclﬁed dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal aiid interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two criteria is'not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at FVTPL.
If a financial asset. meets the amortised cost criteria, the Group may choose to designate the. financial asset at

FVTPL. Such .an eléction i$ irrévocablé and applicable only if the FVIPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement-or recognition inconsistency.
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following ‘conditions and.is not designated as
FVTPL:-

- the asset is-held mthm a businéss model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and.

- the contractual terims of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recoguition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group mayirrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCL. This election is made on an investment-by-investinent basis.

If an equity investment is designated as FVTOCI, all gains and losses except for dividend income, are recoghised
in.other comprehensive income and are not sibsequently included in the statement of income.

Firiancial assets at fair value thirough profit or'loss (FVTPL)-
Finaneial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL.

Financial lia‘bilities'at amortised cost A
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as.financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amortised .cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Finaricial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss .

Financial liabilities' not measured -at amortised cost aré clas51ﬁed and measured at FVTPL. This classification
includes derivative liabilities.

Derecognition
Financial asséts

The Group derecognises. a financial asset when; :

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

- it transfers the righit to recéive the contractual cash flows. in. a transaction in which substantxally all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

- the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially- all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset: .

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the, carrying amount of the asset-and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as-a gain or loss in the income statement.

Financial liabilities , .
The Group dérecognises a financial liability when its contractial obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.
Impairment of financial assets’

Measurement of Expected.Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial instruments that are. not
measured at FVTPL, namely;

- Financial assets that are debt instruments
= Accounts and other receivables'

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which requires. expected lifetime losses to-be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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" Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are contracts, the value of which is derived from one or more underlying
financial instruments or indices, and include futures, forwards, swaps and options in the interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity and credit markets.

2
Derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement-of financial position at fair value. The fair value
of the forward currency contracts:has been determined based on market forward exchange. rates at the:balance
sheet date. .

In statement of financial position, derivative finaricial msti'uments with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are
included as assets and derivative financial instruments with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are mcluded
" as liabilities.

The changes in the fair values of derivative financial’ mstruments entered into for trading purposes are included
‘in other gains and losses through the profit-orloss.

Whilst the Group's ‘derivative financial instruments are used for hedging burpos‘es_, the Group does not apply
hedge accounting per IFRS g:

Offsettinig financial instruments.
- "Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial

position-when there. is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there-is an intention to
‘settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously..

Fair value estimation

With respectto the investments held at fair value through profit or loss, also referred to as the endowment. fund,
the Group discloses fair value reasurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

- Level 1- quoted prices (unadjusted) in-active markets foridentical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 - inputs otlier than quoted prices included within levél 1 that are observable for.the asset or Lability,
either d]rectly (that is, as prices) or indirectly. (that is, derived from' pnces)

- Level 3 - inputs fot the asset or liability that are riot based on obseivable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

-A market is regarded: as active if quot'éd prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, prlcmg service, or regulatory agency and those prxces represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on‘an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. . -, '

The fair value of financial instrumerits that are not traded in.an active tnarket (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined. by using valuation techmqnes These valuation. techmques maximise. the use of
observable market data where it is aviilable and rely as little: as possible on éntity specific. estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is-included in level 2. If one
or'more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, theinstrument is included inlevel 3.

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar mstruments,

- The fair value-of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward éxchange rates at thie balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value; and

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash- flow- analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.
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For investments inicluded in level 3, valuations are provided by the fund manager based -on broker quotes;
comparable transactions and discouiited cash flow analyses taking ‘into account illiquidity in thé fund.
‘Management receive reports from the investment fund manager on a monthly basis detailing the performance
.and valuation of the fund. These highlight any concern over the performance of any of the investments and
valuations are adjusted dccordingly-

Pfovisions

‘A provision is recogmsed in the financial statements when an obligation exists ‘at the balance sheet date, it is
probable that ‘an outflow of resoutces will be required to settle the obligation and a reliablé estirnate of that
obhgatlon can be made. Where there are a number of similar cbligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlément is determined by considering the class of obligations as-a whole. Provisions are discounted
where the efféct is material.

Leases

The company leases various ofﬁces and rental contracts are typlcally made for fixed periods of 12 months-to 30
yeats but may have extension.options. .

Contracts may contain both. lease and non-lease cothponents. The company- allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone. prices. However, for leases of
property forwhich the company. is a lessee and for which it ‘has major leases, it has elected not to separate lease
and non-lease components and instead dccounts for these as a single lease component

Lease terms are negouated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms.and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in-the leased assetsthat are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are'recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corrmpondmg liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the company. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis.

N

Lease liabilities-include the nét present value of the following lease payments:

« Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
- Variable lease paymeénts that are based on-an index or 4 rate, initially medsured using the index-or rateaas at the:
commencement date;

« Amouits expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees;
-+ The exercise price of a purchase optlon if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that: optlon, and
+'Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease: payments-to be made under reasonably certain extension opnons are also included in the measuremerit of
the liability. The lease paymerits are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the jease. If that rate.cannot be
readily determined, which is generally-the case for leases in the company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing tate
is ‘used, being-the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset. of similar valite to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar-terms, securityand
conditions.

The oompany is exposed to potential future increasés in variable leasé payments based on an index or rate, which
are, not included in the lease liability until’ they take effect. When, adjustments. to lease payments based on an
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted agamst the right-of-use asset. Lease
payments are allocated between principal and finance cost: The finance cost is ¢harged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;

_ » The amount of the initial measurenient of lease liability;
« Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
« Any initial direct costs; and
+ Restoration costs.

Rxght-of-use assets are generally deprecxated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line: basis. If the company is reasonably certain to-exercise.a purchase opnon the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life; Whilé the ¢ompany revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has-chosen not to-do 6 for the right-of-use buildings held by
the company.

Payments associdted with short-term leases of eqmpment and vehicles and all leases -of low-value assets. are
recognised on a straight-line basis as-an expense in proﬁt orloss, Short-term leases are leases withi a lease‘term of
12 months or less.. Low-value agsets comprise IT equipment and small itéms of office furniture,

Information about. critical accounting estimates -and judgemernts in the application -of lease accountmg is
disclosed in note'3.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period-in whxch the dividends.are-approved by the Company’s.shareholders..

Defined contribution pension obligation A

All of the Group's employees are eligible for membership of a definéd contribution pension scheme and of those
eligible more than 97% are members.of that scheme. The costs in respect of this scheme aré charged to the
consolidated income statement as incirred.

Defined benefit pension obligation - S :

“The Group contributes to one-closed defined benefit pension scheme. The.operating and’ financing costs of this
scheme are tecogmsed in the consolidated income statement. Service costs and financing costs are recogmsed in
the periods in.which they arise. Finance costs are included in operating costs. Actuarial gains or losses in respéct
of this scheme are shown in the consohdated statement of comprehensive income.

The. asset/(liability) in respect of defined benefit pension scheme is the present value of the defined beneﬂ_t
obligation at the balance sheet date. less thefair value of the.schemes’ assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by mdependent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of corporate
bonds, which have terms approximating the terms of the related cbligation.

. Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective évidence that an asset or group of assets
is impaired. This assessmeit involves consxdenng whether there has been a sxgmﬁcant event or changes in
circumstanices stich as a prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost, reviewing current financial
circumstances and future prospects.
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3 Critical accounting ji!dgexixents and key sources of estimation uncertainty
- A}

The preparation of financial statements in conformi,ty with IFRS-r_equires.,the-‘use of certain critical estimates and
judgements It also requires ‘management to exercise it§ judgément in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The Group continually evaluates its eshmates, -assumptions and judgements based on
available: information and experience. As the usé. of stimates is inherent in financial reporting, :actual results
could differ from these-estimates. The areas:involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are described
below:

Investinentis held at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instrumerits that are not traded in an active market is determinéd by using v'aluation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of appropriate methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on ‘market conditions existing at the end .of each reporting period. This is' thé Group's key
accountmg judgeément and cartying values are disclosed in note 18 and sensitivities in note 4. .

Revenue recognition

The Group has a number of revénue streams-which run over.a number of months or years that reqmre judgement
to recognise revenue in the correct accounting, period. These judgements primarily involve réviewing underlying.
coritracts and agreements to 1dent1fy the petformance imeasures dnd therefore to which period they relate.

Subscription revenue associated with voucher schemes is deferred using estimated redemption rates which are
based on historical experience.

bl

Advertising rebates

The Group-enters into agreements with advertising agencies; which are subject to a minimum spend and typically
include a commitment to deliver rebates.to the agency based on the level .of agéncy spend over the contract
penod These rébates can take the form of free advertising space, cash payments or both The rebate is calculated
using the forecast spend over the contract perlod and the rebate. entitlement set out-in thé trading agreement.

Calculating the requued amount theréfore requires an estimate of futire period spend in determining what tier of
spend the agencies may reach over-the agreement.

Recognition of deferred taxassets
The Group's tax expense for the year: is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of
the total tax expense necessarily involves 4 degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certain items.

A deferred tax asset is. recognised when it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the defetred
tax asset to be recovered. Recognition, therefore, invalves an estimate regarding the' prudent forecasting of future
taxable. -gains and profits of the business.

Management believes that the estimates made to evaluate the recoverability of deferred tax dssets are reasonable
and that a recoverable amount of deferied tax assets: is tecognised. However, these estimates include
uncertainties that are beyond the control of management. Therefore, the Group may need to adjust deferred tax
assets in the. future if- there. is a change in the estimates related to the evaluation of recoverabxhty due to
unforéseen changes in assumptions and other factors.
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Lease term and discount rate, '

There are a number: of critical estimates and Judgements requ1red to calculate lease liabilities. and’ correspondmg
right-of-use assets under IFRS 16. Where there is uncertainty regarding the length of the:lease, this is reviewed
and the most likely expected term is used. The selection of the discount rate is particularly challenging as the
company and the group of which it is part has no debt or'serviceable-equity and therefore does not have weighted -
average cost of capital figure: readi]y available. When se]ectmg an appropriaterate, the company has considered
historical debt, recent capital projects and oommercxally available rates. The final rate:selected is therefore subject
'to significarit Judgement that it'is appropriate, sensitivity analysis has'been performed to ensure that the final rate
used does not unduly influence the outcome with a commonly accepted range of ratés,

Provisions.
The Group's provisions principally relate to dilapidations of premises and severance'costs incurred from .
restructuring its cost base.

Dilapidations are caleulated based on the expected cost to return property t0.its original state and are built up
over the life.of the lease.

When calculating the severances provmon, management has estimated expected timings and, payments based.on
written agreements and discussions that have taken place as part of the restructuring plan

4 Financial risk managementand impairment of financial assets
Financial risk factors :

The Group's-activities may expose itto a variety of financia).risks: market risk; credit risk and liquidity risk. The-
Group's overall risk strategyseeks to minimise. potential adverse effects on the Group's performance.

‘Market risk ' ’
Foreign exchange risk

The Group has investments i funds in non-sterling currencies and in funds which in-turn invest in overseas
assets and as a result is exposed to a degree of foreign exchange risk,

The Group's policy is to- hedge 100% (2020: 100%) of the.exposure to the US Dollar denominated hedge funds
using US Dollar forward contracts.

Sensitivity analysis.

If the US Dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% with all other variables held constant, the investments in
hedge finds would have been approximately £6.5 million lower or £5.8 million hlgher (2020: £7.8 million lower
or £7.0 million higher); however, as the Group 's policy is to hedge 106% (2020: 100%) of the USD denominated
exposure, the tisk would be reduced to £nil (2020: £nil).

If the-US Dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% with all other variables-held constant, the investments in US$
Dollar denominated ménaged funds would have been approximately £7:1 million: Tower or £6.5 million higher
(2020: £8.1 miillion lower or, £7.3 million higher); as the Group's policy is to hedge 0% (2020: 0%) of the
exposure, the risk would remain unchanged.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equlty sécurities price risk because of the investments held by:the Group. To manage the
price risk-arising from the investments, the Group has a diverse portfoho which whilst affected in the prior year
by Covid-19 has not impacted thelong term performance.
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Sensitivity analysis
The table below details whether the gains or losses on the investments would have been higher/lower if the actual
teturns had been 5% higher/lower over the last 12 months, withi all other variables held constant.

Consolidated statement of comprehénsiveé income movement

Investmeit category \

£m
.Global equity +/-4.6.
Deflation hedging - ‘ +/-0.4
_Emerging markets . : +/-0.9
Inflation sensitive . ' +/-0.7.
Hedge funds . A +/-1.4
‘Privdte equlty . +/- 1.2
Tnterést rate risk

The Group has mterest -bearing assets; primarily cash; which are at risk of fluctuations in interest rates. These,are,
monitored by the: Group treasury function to. ensure tisks are minimised. Fluctuations in ‘interest rates are
unlikely to. have a.detrimental 1mpact on the Group's operations and therefore. the risk is not considered to be

significant.
Sensitivity-analysis )

If average annual interest rates had been 1% more during the year, interest receivable would have increased by
£0.8 million (2020: £1.0 million).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss’ to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
_meet its contractual obligations.

-Concentration: of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to'the Groups customer base being -
large and unrelated. Due to this, management believes there is no further credit risk provision réquired in excess.
of the normal provision for expected credit losses. The impact of Covid-19 has been considered both on the
year-end position and through review of évents after the balarice shieet date and there has hot been a significant
impact.. - /

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks-and financial institutions. Only banks and financial institutions with a
Moody's Investors Service minimum rating of Aag(2020:.Aa3) are accepted.

Liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be:able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always-have sufficientfunds available to meet
its liabilities ivhen due, under both normal and difficult tradmg conditions, and ‘without incurring unaccéptable
losses or risking damage to. the Group’s reputation. This, is achieved through careful cash.management including

the productlon and review of regular cash flow forecasts. and the optimisation of cash returns on funds held by the.
Group.
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Capital risk management
‘The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's abﬂity to continue as a going concern.

‘Due to the nature of the Group's structure, the Company-does not make changes- to its equity structure. Debt is
managed in line with the Group's treasury policy. The Group maintains a centralised treasury function which
operates. in accordance with Board approved policies. Its principal objectives are to minimise financial rlsk whilst
‘maximising returns on cash deposits.

Deposits of funds are made with banks and financial institutions approved by the: ‘Board and. within set credit
limits. Variable rates of return are earned on these deposits.

- ~

Cash flow risk

The Group considers cash flow risk to be low due to the availability of liquid resources held -in cash and the
endowment fund.

Fair value estimations .

The fair valués of financial instruinents tfaded in actwe markets are based on qiioted market prices-at the balance
sheet date.

“The fair value of financial instriiments that are not traded in an active market use fund managers' statements

which are based on'broker pricing or theirown valuation techniques.(note 18).

5 Revenue

The analysis of the Group's revenue for the period from contiriving operations is as follows;

2021 2020
) . £m Em
Digital reader revenue : 68.7 42.6
Print readerrevenue 70.8 76.0
Advertising 61.3 71.0
Other revenue. 24.7 33.9
225.5. 2235

Digital reader revenue- Dlgltal reader revenue is.from redder focused operations where the content is served
onlirie, including mobile and apps. The key revenue streams within this category aré subscriptions and
contributions.

Print reader revenue - Print reader revenue is from reader focused’operations where the servicing is via
print media, The key revenue streams within this cateégory are newsstand and print subscriptions.

Advertising --Advertising encompasses all advertising operations, served both online, including mobile and
apps and also through print media.

Other reveriues - Other revenues iriclude all rémaining revenues not included in the above and- could be
seriices. both. online, inchiding mobile and apps. or through print media. Revenue. streams include content
licensing, events and philanthropic.

Page 34



Guardian Media Group plc

, C
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021 ,

The analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical market is as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m
United Kingdom 156.2 168.3
‘USA & Canada 35.3 27.0
Australia & New Zealand 167 131
Europe (excl. UK) 14.3 11.9
Rest of the woirld 3.0 3.2
225.5 223.5

Performance obligations'

Performance obligations are specified within our contracts with customers. Key revefiue streams and how they
are-accounted fop based on assessment of performance-obligations are detailed in the accounting pohces

The Group has taken advantage of the practical expedierits in IFRS 15 not to disclose information on unsatisfied
performance obligations: as the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected
duration. of one year or less (paragraph 121); ; not to recognise a‘sighificant financing component (paragraph 63);
and costs t6 obtain a contract (paragraph 94).

Contract balances

Contract assets arise where goods or services are. transferred to the customer before the customer pays
consideration, or before payment is due. Contract receivables (loans and advances) represent.our unconditional
right to consideration. for the goods or services supplied and performance obligations delivered: Contract
liabilities (deposxts from customers) relate to consideration received when we still have:an obligation to deliver
goods or services for that consideration.

Due to the nature of the Group's-contracts, which are generally short term or of a service nature, the Group does
not have significant contract assets or liabilities othér than accrued incomie per note'26 and deferred income per
note 22.
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6 Non-statutory performance measures.

The Group uses two key non-statutory key performance indicators; being adjusted operating. proﬁt/(loss) and
-adjusted riet operating cash flow.

2021 ; 2020
Before 2021 Before 2020
exceptional Exceptional 2021 ‘exceptional Exceptional 2020
items items Total items items Total
Note £m - £m £m  £m £m £m-
Revenue 5 225.5 ’ - 225.5 223.5 - 223.5
Raw miaterials and . o
con;umables used . 7 (10.3) - . (10.3) (16.7) - 16.7)
Staff costs 12 (121.0) (9.6) (130.6) (120.9) (3.2) (124.1)
‘Other expenses 7 (81.8) (1.5) (83.3) (92.8) 1.9 (90.9)
Depreciation on )
right-of-use assets 7 (6.1) - (6.1) (5.0) . (5.0)
Interest expense on _
Jeases 8 (3.2) -~ @2) 3] - (2.2
Adjusted
operating i ) ' - .
profit/(loss) : .3.1 (11.1) (8.0) (14.6) - (1.3) (15.9)

Adjusted net operating profit/(loss) represents profit or-loss itéms that management consider to bé key in the
day-today performance of the. business. As per below, this is calculated as statutory operating proﬁt/(loss)
adjusted for the follow items: exclusion of depreciation (on property, plant and eqmpment) and amortisation
expense. and inclusiorr of interest expense on leases.

2021 : 2020
Before 2021 Before 2020
exceptional Exceptional 2021  éxceptional Exceptional 2020
items items Total ‘items items "Total
Note £m £m £m - £m £m £m
\)Operating . ,
profit/(loss) 1.0 (r:1) (10.1) (16.2) 1.3) (17.5)
Less:-Depreciation ‘
expense . 7 2.0 - 2.0 ' 2.1 - 2.1
Léss: Amortisation .
expense: 7 3.3 - 3-3 2.2. - ‘2.2
Add: Interest ' ‘
expense on leases 8 (3.2) - (3.2) .7 - (2:7)
Adjusted
operating N .
profit/(loss) 3.0 (11.1) (8.0) (14.6) (1.3) (15.9)

~

Adjusted net operating cash flow represent.’s cash items that management consider to.be key in the operations of
the busiriess, As per below, this is calculated as statutory net cash flow adjusted for the following items: exclusioft
of loans to the Group's parent company for investing purposes and transactions/development and cash
'mJectlons/MthdrawaIs relating to the Group endowment fund investments.
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Note
Cash flow
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equiyalenls
Adjusted for:
Increase ifi receivables due from réelated parties 27

Purchase of investments held at FVTPL
Sale of inyestments held:at FVTPL

Adjusted net operating.cash flow

7 Operating costs

Operatingloss is arrived at after charging:

Raw materials and consumables used
Depreciation expense

Amortisation expense

Depteciation on right-of:use assets

8 Financeincome and costs

'
N

‘Finance income. .
Interest income on investments-held at fair value thréugh profit-or loss
Interest.income on bank deposits :

Total finance income

Finance-costs
Foreign exchange.losses
Interest expense on leases.

Total finance costs

Net finance (costs)/income
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2021 2020
£m £m
12.2 (7.9)
2.1 9.0
164.4. 308.2
(194.3) - (338.3)
(15.6) (29.0)
2021 2020.
£m £m
10.3 16.7
2.0 2.1
3.3 22
6.1 5.0
2021 2020
£m £m
2.3 37
0.1 0.4
2.4 4.1
-
4(0.8) -
_(32) (2.7
(#.0) (2.7)
(1.6) 1.4
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9 Other gains and losses
The analysis of the Group's other gains and losses for the period is-as follows:

2021 2020
. ) . . £m £m
Net gain/(loss) on investrients held at fair value through profit or loss 197.6 (10.6)
Gain/(loss) from forward contracts to hedge foreign currency
investments ' 12.4 (14.3)
‘Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 4.8 )
210.0 (20.1)
10 Exceptional items
2021 2020
£m £m
Operating costs (exchiding depreciation and amortisation)
Operating costis a1y, (1.3)

.

Guardian News & Media £(11.1)m (2020: £(0.6)m)

During the year, the Group commenced a strateglc restructure of its cost base resu]tmg in severance costs of
£(9.6)m. In addition, the Group incurred costs.in relation to office space previously assigned to a third party. The
associatéd onerous costs of £(1.5)m are considered exceptional as:; they are not linked to. the performance of the
Group..

The prlor year included final costs'in relation to the three year plan commenced in 2015/16 to boost revenues and
reduce its cost base. These include severance costs of £(1.7)m and release of onerdus leases provlswns prevmusly
raised as exceptional items-£2.6m. These transactions represent a fundamental- restructunng of its operations
and as such have been categorised as exceptlonal In addition, the Group recognised a provision for annual leave
not prevmusly reflected for £(1.5)m. The provision was considered immaterial for prior period adjustment, but on
the basis it relates to prior penods ithas been categorised as an exceptional item.

Other GMG Group £nil (2020' £(0.7)m)

Following the prior outsourcing of print operations, the Group mcurred £(0.7)m in 2020 in'relation to wmdmg
- down residual assets which have now been disposed. of. As this s considered to be the completion of the

transformative activity, this is considered to be-an exceptional item.

2021 2020
£m £m
Other gains and losses
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 4.8

Following the outsourcing of print operations, the Group has disposed of its remaining property that was used for
printing. The gain on dlsposa] of £nil (202a: £4.8m) has. been treated ‘as an -exceptional item as it is the
completion of a transformative projéct.
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11 Auditors' remuneration.

2021 2020
£m £m
Audit of these finaricial statements. 0.1 01
Audit of the financia] statements-of subsidiaries of the. company pursuant —
to legislation 0.2 0.1
0.3 0.2
" Other fees to auditors
Tax-related services - 01
12 Employees and directors
The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remunération) ivere as follows:
. ’ , 2021 2020
) £m £m
Wages and salaries. 101.2 103.3
Sacial security costs. 10:8 10.6
Other pension costs , 8.3 8.5
Reduridancy.costs 10.3- L7,
' \ 130.6 124.1

During the financial year, the Group claimed E1.6m (2020: £qil) of goverriment grants from the Coronavirus:Joh
Retention Scheme relating to furloughed: employees Subsequently, the Group vo]untanly elected to repay these
grants and therefore there is; no impact to the income statement as the initial receipt has been reversed, the
amount repayable is teﬂected in accruals .and was paid duririg April 2021. The Group does not have any

unfulfilled: dbligations relatinig to this programmie:

B

The monthly average number of persons employed by the group (including.directors) during the period,’analysed

by category was as follows:
. 2021 2020
No, No.
Editorial‘'and production 902 869
Sales, distribution andsupport 595 626
1,497 1,495
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—~

Keéy management compensation, comprising directors and certain othér senior management of the-Group:

2020
! . £m
Salaries and short-termi employee benefits 4.2 6.2
.Post-employment benefits 0.2 0:2
‘Termination benefits 03 0.2
4.7 6.6
Directors' remuneration
' Pension )
contributions Total Total
Base salary  Benefits. & allowances 2021 2020
£000. £o000 £000 £.o000 £ 000
Neil Berkett - 96 ' - 96 120
.Annette Thomas (*fiom 17 .
March2020) 1 546 69 616 58
‘David Pemsel (*to 2 December. . ' '
2019) 2 - - - 679
Katharine Viner 3 309 38 349 391
Keith Underwood (*from 6 )
July 2020) 4 282 26: 309 -
Richard Kerr (*to 27 March
2020) - 5 - - - 471
Indepéndent directors
Jennifer Duvalier - 6 31 - 31 39
Anders Jensen ("frgni 17 ‘
March 2020) 7 27 - 27 1
Yasmin Jetha 27 - 27 34
ngel Morris 27 - .27 34
John Paton (*to 2 September
2019) 8 - - - 17
Baroness Gail Rebuck 9 35 - 35 44
RerieRechtman (*from 17
March 2020) 10 27 - 27 1
Coram Williams 1 31 - 31 39. .
Total 1,438 133 1,575 1,928

* Date of appointment, resignation or cthet changes to directorships.
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Executive. directors’ pension arrangements are paid in two parts. Contributions to theé comipany pensxon are
restricted to the annual tax- approvable limit of £10,000. Any value above this limit is pald as cash in lieu of
pension contributions and subject.to PAYE. Benefits comprise solely healthcare and life and income protection.

“The latter is calculated as a percentage of base salary.

In response to the financial pressure and economic uncertsinty resulting from the outbreak of the Covid-19
pandémic the executive directors agreed to take a 20% voluritary salary reductién and the non-executive directors:
agreed to take.a30% voluntary reduction to their fees. These voluntary reductions applied for the period 1 May -
31 December 2020. With effect from 1 January 2021 the reductions ceased and salanes/fees returned to their
pre-covid level. None of the executive directors or non-executive directors received an increase to their’ underlymg_
base:salary during the yéar.

1 - Annette Thomas’ base salary for-the year was £630, 000, and was voluntarily reduced by 20% for the period 1.
May 2020 to 31 December 2020. Annette’s company pensxon contribution rate increased from 10% to 11% of base
salary during the year in line. with an age related increase under the scheme. Annette’s salary, benefits-and
pensmn for 2019/20 were pro-mted to reflect her service durmg the year followmg her appomtment

salary David did not receive any perfounance re]ated vanab]e compensation. David left his role effective 2
December 2019 and in line with a contractual commitment in respect of the remammg 3 months of his notice.
period he received a one off payment for salaryand pension totalling £184,275. His salary, benefits and pension
were pro-rated to reflect his service during the year 2019/20. He:did not receive any other payments:in relation to
leaving the Guardian. '

3- - Katharine Viner's base salary for the year was £357,000,.and was voluntarily reduced by 20% for the period 1
May 2020 to 31 December 2020. Katharine’s company. pension contribution rate increased from 9% to 10% of
base salary during the year in Jine with an age related increase tnder the schemie.

4 - Keith, Underwood’s.base salaty for the year was £420,000, and was voluntarily reduced by 20% for the period
32 Juné 2020 tp 31 December 2020. Keitli’s'company pension contribution rate was.8% of base salary. Keith’s
salary, benefits and pension for 2020/21 were pro-rated to reflect his service during. the year following his
.appointment.

5 - Richard Kerr's base was £420,000. Richard's compahy pension contribufion rate was 9% of base salary,
Richard resigned from his role or 27 March 2020. Richard's 'unused holiday was paid-in line with contractual
arrangements. Richiard did not receive any payments in relation to leaving the Guardian..

6 - Jennifer Duvalier’s remuneration included an additional fee for chairing theé Remuneration Cominittee.

7 - Anders Jensen joined as an. Independent Director on 17 March 2020. His annualised remuneration is
£34,000.

8 - John Paten stepped down as an Independent Director on 2 September 2019. His annualised remuneration
was £34,000.

9 - Baroness Gail Rebiuick's: remuneration included a feé for acting as Senior Indepéendént Director.

.10 - Rene Rechtman joined as an Independent Dxrector on 17 March 2020. His annualised remuneration ‘is
£34,000.

11 - Coram Williams' remuneration included an additional fee for chairing the Audit Committee.

Page 41



.

Guardian Media Group plc

" Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

13 Income tax

Tax charged in the ihcome statement

2021 2020
£m £m
Current taxation
Foreign taxes 0.4. 0.3
Deferred taxation .
Arising from origination:and teversal of temporary differences 16.4 0.3
Tax expense'in the income statémeént | 16.8 0.6

Tax on items charged/(credited) to the consolidated statement of coﬁ)prehensive income
' ’ 2021 2020
£in - £m
"Deferred tax credit on actuarial loss . (1.2) - (0.3)

a2) (0.3)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax on profit/(loss) before tax for the period is lower than the'standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
(2020 - higher-than the s'tandard. rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2020 - 19%)..

The differences are reconciled beloy: T

2021 2020
£m £m

Profit/(loss) before tax: 198.2: (36.8)
Tax on profit calculated at standard rate of 19% (2020: 19%) 37.7 (7.0)
Adjustments relating to current tax: '

(Income not taxable)/expenses-not deductible a.1) 0.7
Foreign taxes paid 0.4 0.3
Impact of overseas tax rate differences 0.2/ -
Utilised taxlosses in the year (i.g) (0.7)
Losses not.utilised in the.year _ ) 0.9 . 0.1
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances - - 0.7
Adjustment to tax charge on investments held:at FVTPL i (35.8) 6.8
"Tax relief on pension contributions - (0.5)
Short term timing differences on accousting provisions C - (0.1)
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year : 0.4 0:3
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2021 2020
/ . ’ . £m £m

Adjustments relating to deferred taxation:

Depreciation.in excess of capital allowances . - (0.5)
Adjustinent to tax charge on investments held at FVTPL 36.9 (9.9)
“Tax relief-on pension contributions ’ - 05
Short term timing differences.on accounting provisions. . - 01
Impéirment/(recognition) of deferred tax asset ‘ (20.6) 9.5
‘Losses. utilised in the. year - 0.6
Adjustments in: respect of prior years 0:1 -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year ' 16.4 6.3
‘Total tax charge/(credit) . 16.8 0.6

Tax on exceptional items

The tax credit on exceptional costs.of £11m is £1.2m. This is lower-than the expected tax credlt of £2.1 due'to an

‘increase of £0.9m of provisions disallowed in the period.

In the prior year the tax credit on exceptional income of £3.5m was £3.1m, This was.lower than the expected tax
charge of £0.7m due to'a reduction of £3.8m tax loss on disposal of capital assets and £0.3m tax relief on release
of provisions previously disallowed and £0.3m tax increase, due to-expenses not dedictible for tax purposes.

Income not taxable/expernses not deductible
Certain types of income such as dividends are not taxable. Some expenses by their very nature are entirely
appropnate charges for inclusion in these financial statements but are not allowed as a deduction against taxable

income when caleulating the tax’ liability: Examplés of such expenditure are ceftain légal expenses and

depreciation charged on assets that do nét qualify for capital allowances.

Foreigri taxes paid ¢

“The majority of the Groups activities are perforimed and taxed in the UK. However certain local taxes are.

incurred by the Group's activities in overseas territories. Wlthholdmg taxes are also incurred on certain overseas
fevenue streams, currently no double tax‘relief is.available as there is insufficient UK tax payable on the foreign
income agdinst which the foreign tax-was charged,

Utilised tax losses in the year

The Group has utilised historic brought. forward losses to offset proﬁts and gains recognised in thé income
statement which. has resulted in a reduction in the corporate tax charge in the year. This includes brought forward
lossés. which have not been recognised as a defeired tax asset.

Current year losses not utilised in the year .

The Group has incurred losses in the year which have not been utilised in the year. These losses are carried
forward to be utilised against future profits earned by the Group.
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Depreciation in excess of capital allowances

The accounting treatment of expendlture on fixed assets differs fiom the tax treatment. For accounting purposes
an annual rate of depreciation is applied to the cost of the assets over their-useful economic life. Tax relief is not
available on all the depreciation. Instead, capital allowances are available to be claimed on ¢eitain fixed assets as
a tax relief provided in law.

Adjustment to tax charge on investments lield at fair value through profit or'loss (FVTPL)

The accounting tredtment of investihents-held at FVTPL differs: from the tax treatment. For tax purposes, the
Group is reguired by law to ignore the accounting transactions and instead perform a separate calculation of the
taxable. profit or loss when the assets are disposed of. The Group is -also required by law to-disregard for tax:
purposes the accourting transactions -associated with .derivatives entered into relating to these assets. The
disregarded transactions. are subsequently brought into account fortax purposes when the undetlying assets are
disposed of. The resulting timing differences result ifi-a-deferred tax liability which represents the future net tax
due on the disposal of the assets based on their valuation at the balance sheet date.

Tax relief on pension contributions’

The Group is entitled to claim a tax deduction for the payment of contributions into its pension schemes .and
tecognise a deferred taxasset on atiy future contributions to cover an-actuarial loss..

Short term timing differences on accounting provisions

. Short terrn timing differences arise on items such as ‘certain provisions because the treatment of these items is
different for tax-and accounting purposes. These timing differences result in a deferred tax asset or liability which
represents the future tax relief or tax payable available on the utilisation of the provisions.

Reécognition of deferred tax liability

The inherent future gains in the investments. held at fair value through profit and loss are greater than the
amount of carried forward losses, :short term timing differénces and capital allowances that will be available by
law to offset these gains. A deferted tax liability has been recognised in relation to the amount of excess future
gains.

Factor's that may affect future tax charges ' -
In thie 2021 Budget the government announced the UK corporatmn tax rate will increase to-25% with effect ﬁ'om 1

April 2023. Thereis no impact on these financial statements as at the balance sheet date as the legislation had not
been:substantively enacted at this point:

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax.is. calenlated in full .on terpotary timing differences. under the hablllty method using. the rate-at
which the balances are: expected to be unwound.

‘The movément on the deferred tax asset is as shown below:
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Accelerated
-capital
allowances on
fixed assets

" Short term and
other timing
differences
Investments held.
at FVTPL

Tax losses carried
forward

Total deferred
tax

asset/ (hablllty)
\

Accelerated
capital
allowances on
fixed assets

Short term and
other timing
differences .
Investments held
at FVTPL

Tax losses carried
forward

Total deferred
tax
asset/(liability)

N Témporax"y.

differences
. arisingin
Adjustments Temporary the year
in respect differences recognised
of priot arisingin (Impairment) in the con-
years the year  /recognition solidated
Balance recognised recognised of deferred statement Balance
as at 30 in'the in the ‘tax asset in of comp- asatz8:
March . income ‘income the income rehensive March
2020 statement statement statement income 2021
“£m £m Em £m | £m £m
5.6 - - 12.0 - 17.6
(0.2) - - - 1.2 1.0
(10:8) - (36.9) - - @77
5.4 (0.1) - 8.6 - 13.9
- (0.1) (36.9) 20.6 1.2 {15.2)
Temporary.
differences
A ' arising in-
Adjustments: Temporary the year
' inrespect - differences recognised
.ofprior arisingin (Impairment)/ in the con-
years the year recognition solidated
recognised recognised of deferred statement Balance
Balance in the in the tax asset.in ofcomp- asatz9
asat1 income income theincome  rehensive March
April 2019  statement statement statement income 2020
£m £m £m £m £m £m
104 0.5 0.5 (5.8 - 5.6
- - (0.6) 0.1 0.3. (o.2)
(18.7) - 9.9 (2.0) - (10.8)
. 8.3 (0.5) (0.6) (1.8) . - 5.4
- - 9.2 (9.5) 0.3. -

Page 45



Guardian Media Group plc

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

t

Deferred tax asséts have not been recognised where they-relate to losses and tax reliefs in companies where their
future utilisation cannot be considéred prébable. The Group has-an unrecognised deferred tax asset at the balance
- sheet date of £34.4m (2020:.£47.9m), including overseas trading losses of £12.2m (2020: £17.4m).

14 Property, plantand equipment

Furniture,
* Land and fittinigs and Plant and
buildings equipment vehicles Total
( £m £m £m £m
Costor valuation '
At1 April 2019 37.0 » 26.0 15.4 78.4
Additions . < - 1.4 1.1. 2.5
~ Disposals + (37.0) - (0.2) (37:2)
At 29 March 2020 - ' 27.4 16.3 43.7
At 30 March 2020 - 27.4 - T 16.3 437
‘Additions - 01 -1.3 1.4
Disposals - (i.2) (4.0) (5.2)
At 28 March 2021 - 26.3° 13.6 30.9
Depreciation
At1 April 2019 ' 34.2 ‘o7 12.8 72,7
Charge foi period 0.1 0.3 1.7 2.1
Eliminated 6n disposal ' (343) - (0:2) (34.5)
At 29 March 2020 . - .26.0 14.3 40.3
At 30 March 2020 - 26.0 14.3 40.3
Charge for the period - 0.5 1.5 2.0
Eliminated on disposal - (11) - (4.0) (5.1)
At 28'March 2021 - 25.4 11.8 37.2
Carrying.amount
At 28 March 2021 - ' 0.9 L ora18 2.7
At 29 March 2020 - 1.4 20 - 3.4
At1:April 2019 2.8 0.3 . ‘ 2.6 5.7
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N

15 Intangible assets

Cost
At1 April 2019
Additions -

At 29 March 2020

.At 30 March 2020

Disposals- ‘
At 28'March 2021

Amortisation
At1 April 2019
Amortisation charge

At 29 March 2020

At 30 March-2020

Amiortisation charge

Amortisation eliminated on disposals

At 28 March 2021

Carrying. amount .
At 28 March 2021

At 29 March 2020

At1 April 2019

B
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H

16 Right of use assets

. ' ' Property
. £m

Cost or valuation .

At 1AApn'1'2019 ’ . ' 47.1
Additions . v . 267
Disposals ' ' (0.3)
At 29 March 2020 A ' . 73.5
At 30 March 2020 : S 73.5
_Additions ’ o o1
Disposals . ' (0.2)
At:28 March 2021 "y v 73.4
Depreciation ‘ :
Charge for period ‘ . 5.0
Eliminated on disposal o / (0:3)
At 2g March 2020 . ) 4.7
At .30 March.2020 L . ' . 4.7
Charge for the period 6.1
Eliminated on.disposal o {0.2)
At'28 March.2021 . . : 10.6
Carrying amount ] .

At.28 March 2021 ' < 62.8
At 29 March 2020 ‘ 68.8

17 Investmentsinjoint véntures

Ozone Project Limited P
“The-Group owns 25% of the share capital of Ozone. Project Limited.

Reconciliation of carrying value

2021 2020
. ( . Em - £m
At'30 March 2020 ’ 0.1 0.7
Share of loss for the period ’ (0.1) (0.6)
At 28 March 2021 . - - 0.1
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18 Other financial assets

Non current - other financial assets

Investments-held at fair value through profit or loss
Unlisted shares

Current - othier financial assets.

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Other financial assets

Global investment funds
Non-current short term funds held for reinvestment

Derivative finiancial instruents

Long term investment fund
Corporate.and:government bonds
Current short term funds held for reinvestment

" Medium term fund

2021 ‘2020
£m £m
1,015.7 814.7
0.2 0.2
1,015.9 814.9
{
2021 2020
£m £m.
77:2 104.5
1.9 -
79.1 104.5
2021 2020
£m £m
929.8 758.8
85.9 55.9
1,015.7 814.7
1.9 (6.8)
1,017.6 807.9
61.9 819
15.3 22.6
77.2 104.5

The.Group has committed fo future investments. of £133.6 million (2020: £120.2 million). The Group considers
that any associated risk with meeting these commitments is low as they }yﬂl be met from disposal of existing

funds. ‘

The short-term funds held for reinvestment broadly represent highly liquid investments'in money market deposit
accounts and money market funds with a maturity date-of three months or less, Management has classified some
of these as non-current as it currently has no intention of using them in the Group's operations in the next

financial year.

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are meastired at fair value at the year end;

descriptions of each level are included 'on page 28.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
. £m £m £m _Em
As at-28 March:2021
Financial assets - FVTPL 575:4 61.9 455.6 1,092.9
Derivative financial instruments ) - 1.9 - 1.9
575-4 63:8 455.6 1,094.8
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! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m. £m Em
As at 29 March 2020
Financial assets - FVTPL- 4349 - . 81.8 - 402.5 919.2
Derivative financial instruments - (6.8) - (6.8)
434.9 75.0 402:5 912.4

The following table .shows a summary of the changes in the fair value of the Group's Level 3 firiancial assets -
FVTPL dur,in_g the year;

Level 3
. £m
.At.30 March 2020 403.5
Additions'into Level 3 . 64.9
Disposals. ()
Fair-value gains recognised in:income.statement 59 -'3'
At28 March 2021 — 4556

Sepsitivity analysis for Level 3 positions::

Ifthe US Dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% with all other variables héld constant, the investments in level

3: US Dollar-denominated financial assets would have been approximately-£16.7 million lower or £15.1 million
higher: -

The gains or losses on the investments would have been £5.5 million higher/lower if the:actual returns had been ‘
5% higher/lower 6ver the last 12 months, with all other variables held constant..

There have been 1o significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during theyear:

“The fair value of fund assets held in Level 11is based on their current bid prices in an active market:

For investments: included in level 3, valuations are provided by. the fund manager based on broker. quotes,.
comparable transactions and discounted cash flow analyses taking -irto account illiquidity in the -fund.

Management receive reports from the investment fund manager on.a monthly basis detailing the performance.
and valuation . of the fund. These highlight any concern over the performance of any of the investments and
valuations are adjusted accordingly.

Other financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
£m £m
Sterling ) ) 738.8 558.2
US Dollar . 3165 328.2
Euros 37.6 21.2
Qther - 11.6
1,092.9 9i9.2
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19 Inventories

J ) ) 2021 2020
E o o £m £m
Raw materials and consumables ' 04 04
The Group consumed £10.3 million (2020: £16.5 million) of inventories during the year.
20 Tradeand other receivables
: 2021 ‘2020
M £m £m
Trade receivables 20.2 19.1
Loss allowance - _ (0.49) (0.6)
Net trade receivables ' 19.8 18.5
Receivables from related parties ’ 37.4 25.3
Accrued income ' 8.0 7.9
Prepayments 4.7 3.0
Other receivables ’ 2.0 4.0
Total current trade-and other receivables ¢ . 61.9 58.7

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected eredit losses which uses.a lifetime

expected loss allowance for-all trade receivables and the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Contract assets included in the above balances will fully unwind in the:.current year.

—
21 Cash and cash equivalents
' 2021 2020
£m. £m
Cash at bank o . . 9.9 7.3
Short-term deposits 43.8_ 34:5
' 53.7 41.8:
22 Trade and other payables ~
2021 2020
£m £m
Trade payables. ' 1.9 71
Accrued expenses ' 141 17.0
Deferted income 18.7 16.4
Social security and other taxes - 13 2.8
Other payables 0.5 1.6
36.5 44.9

The trade and other payables classified as financial instrumients aré at carrying value which is consideted. to:be

the fair value by the Group.
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The Group's exposure to market and liquidity risks, mcludmg maturity analysxs\ related to trade and other

payables.is disclosed in the financial risk management and i 1mpa|rment note.

Contract liabilities incliided in the above balances wi]l_ fully un\vind,iu the current year.

23 Provisions

, o Other ) :
Building Restructuring ‘provisions ‘Total
£m ] £m £m
At 30 March 2020 4.9. 0.8 4.8 10.5
Additional provisions " 15 3.4 1.4 . 63
Provisions used - , - - (0.4) (0.4)
Unused provision reversed - - {0.7) (0.7)
At-28 March 2021 6.4 4.2 5.1 ] 15.7
Non-current liabjlities- 5.0 - 0.4 5.4
Current liabilities : 1.4 4.2 4.7 . 10.3

The building provisions relate to dilapidations provisions expected to be utilised over the life of the lease of twelve

years.

The restructurmg _provisions prlman]y relate to severdnces, during the year the’ Group cornmenced a strategic
restruchire of its-cost base. The provision is.expected to be fully utilised within six months:

.Other'provisi‘ons primarily rélate to annual leave obligations.

Provisions are notdiscounted as-any impact is not considered material.

24 Leases

Breakdown of leases:

Current portion.of long term lease liabilities
Long term lease liabilities
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Lease liabilities maturity analysis
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on undiscounted gross cash flow is reported in the table below:

2021 2020
: £m £m
Less than one year ' 8.2 10.0
2 years 8.2 ) 8.2
3 years. 8.2 ’ 8.2
4 years 8.0 8.2
gyears. ’ 7.5 8.0
6 years 7.5 7.6
7 years 6.9 7.6
8 years ) ’ 6.9 6.9
9 years . 7.0 _ 6.9
10 years : 7.0 7.0
- Between 10 to 15 years N ’ 12.2 19.1
Total lease liabilities (undiscounted) 87.6 97.7
Total cash oqtﬁows related to leasés
Total cash outflows related to leases are.presented in the table below:

' 2021 2020
Paymnient £m £m
Right of use assets : 10.0 79
25 Sharecapital
Allotted; called up and fully paid shares

. 2021 2020
No.m £m No.m P £m
Ordinary Shares‘of £1-each 0.9 . 0.9 0.9 0.9
26 Dividends paid )
N 2021 2020
£m £m
Dividend of £0.333 (2020: £0:306) per ordinary share 0.3 0.3

On 16 March 2021 the Board declared a dividend of 33.3p (2020: 30.6p) per share on the-ordinary share capital
amounting to-£300,000-(2020: £275,000) which was paid to The Scott Trust Limited on 16 March 2021.
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27 Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities

. Profit/(loss) for the period ~
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of other intangible assets B
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance caosts
Finance.income
Other gains and losses
Pensions. )
Share of loss of joint ventures after taxation
Increase/(décrease) in provisions

Working capital adjustments

Decrease in inventoties

Increase in receivables-due from related parties
(Decrease)/increase in trade'and otherreceivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

28 Noh adjusting events after the financial period

Note

2021 2020 -
Em £m

198.2 ,(36:8)
8.1 71
3.3 2.2
- " {4.7)
4.0 2.7
(2.4) (4.1)
(210.0) 24.9
(0.1) (2.6)
0.1 0.6
52 (6.2)
6.4 (16.9).
- 0:1
(2.1) (9.0)
(0.9) 2.8
9.2) (7.8)
(5.8) (30-8):

There have been no significant events between the balance sheet date and the date of approval of these financial

statements.
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29 Pension commitments
2021 2020
£m - £m
-Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 8.3 8.5

“Trafford Park Printers 1990 Pension Scheme

‘Trafford Park Printers 1990 Pension Scheme ("the Scheme"), is a definéd benefit scheme, which.provides benefits
‘based on final pensionable pay: The Scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 April 1998 and closed to future
accrual on 31 Décember 2006: )
On 5 March 2020'GPC Manchester Limited -was replaced as the -Scheme's principal employer with Guardian
Media Group plc: There was no impact on the Group's results from this transfer.

The scheme. provides- pension benéfits payable to members (and potentlally their spouses/dependents) for life:
The level 6f benefits provided depends on the members’ length of service.and their salary in the years leading up
to closure to future accrual. Pensions in paymerit are generally increased in line with price inflation.

The scheme is ‘governed by a board of trustees, composed of rTepresentatives of the Company and scheme
partu:lpants - The board of trustees have contro] over the operation of the.scheme and its funding and investment
strategies. Investment decisiops. and- agreement on contribution schedules are the joint responsibility of the
Group and the trustees.

The scheme assets are-held in trusts-and governed by local regulations-and practice.

UK legislation requires the trustees of the Scheme to carry outan actuarial valuation at least every three-years and
to target full funding against a basis that prudently reflects the scheme’s -exposure to risk.. The most recent
actuarial valuation for the TPP Scherie was performed as at © April 2019 which resulted .in the’ "TPP Scheme
having assets. sufficient to cover. g3% of the liabilities dccrued in respect of memibers. Following the valudtion of
the Scheme a revised recovery plah ‘was agreed. This recovery plan covered. a period of 1: ‘year-and, required a
one-off contribution of £2,690,600 to be paid to-the Scheme before 31 March 2020. It is expected that this
contribution will cleat-the deficit as calculated by the scheme's actuary. As such the expected contributions
payable to thé Scheme for the next reportmg period are £nil. The next triennial valuation will be carried out as'at
31 March 2022, , -

_ During.the year, contributions totalling £nil (2020: £2,690,600) were paid to the TPP Scheme..

The valuation for the TPP Scheme has been updated to 28 March 2021 for accounting purposes by a qualified
independent:actuary:
~N
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Risks
Asset volatlity

The scheme liabilities. dre calculated using a discount rate set with Teference to corporate bond yields; if scheme’
assets-underperform this yield (all else being equal), this will create a shortfall. The scheme holds a proportion of
equities, which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in. the long-term but they expose the scheme to
volatility and risk in the short-term. .

As the scheme matures, the Group (and trustees) mtend(s) to reduce the level of investment risk by investing
more in assets-that better match the movement in the liabilities (for- example gilts and bonds). However, the
Group believes that due to the long-term .nature. of the scheme liabilities and the stretigth of the sponsoring
employer, a controlled level of equity investment is an appropriate element of the Group’s long-term strategy to
manage the scheme efficiently. .
Changes in gilts/ corporate bond yi¢lds ,
A decrease in corporate bond ylelds will increase-scheme liabilities, although. thlS will be partially offset by an
increase in the value of the: schemes assets held ‘in corporate bonds: ~

Inflation risk

The miajority of the pension obligations are linked to inflation (1 e. the associated increases on the pensions before,
and after retirement are generally linked to price mﬂatxon) Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities.
(although some caps apply to the level.of inflationary increases, which minimiseés the exposure to. high inflation
rates).

The schemes hold a proportlon of the assets-in index-linked gilts, whose value changes w1th movements in price
inflation. Higher'inflation will increase their value:and offset some of the liability exposure.

Life _expectancy

The majority.of the scheme obligations are to provide pension. benefits for.the life of the member (or the lifetime
of their spouse ./ dependants). Therefore, increases. in life expectancy iill result in an inctease in the scheme
liabilities. * .

Re'gulatiq‘ns ’ ' .

Actions taken by the UK pensions regulatot, or changesto European legislation, could resilt in stronger funding.
standards, which could materially affect the scheme obligations and cash flow requirements from the Group.

The Group, along with the trustees of the scheme, manages the funding and investmeént strategy of the scheme to
minimise these risks as-much as possible.

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2021 2020
» : £m - "Em
Fair value of scheme assets 44.8 48.2
Present value of scheme liabilities (49.6) (46.7)
Defined benefit pension scheme (deficit)/surplus ) (4.8) 1.5

N
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{

Schemeassets .
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets-are as follows:

Fair value-at start of period
Interest income

) Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest

income/(expernse)
- Employer contributions
Benefits paid

Fair value at end of period

Analysis of assets
The major.categories-of scheme assets are-as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruraents

Debt instruments
Insuraince annuity
Investment funds

Equity instrumerits
Eduity ihstrunients. can'be further categorised as follows;

Quoted
Equity instruments

Debt instruments )
Debt instruments can be further categorised as follows:
, :

Quoted

Gilts ~
" Corporate bonds,
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2021
£m £m
48.2. 47.1
11 1.1
(1.0) (1.0)
- 2.7
3.5) .7)
44.8 48.2
2021 2020
Em £m
0.3 2.7
10.0 '7:8
129 27.3
- 10.6 10.4
11.0 -
.44-8 48.2
2021 2020
Em £m
10.0 7.8
gbzx 2020
£m £m
- 14.8
12.9 i2.5
12.9 27.3.




Guardian Media Group plc

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 28 March 2021

Invesfnient funds
Investment funds can be further categorised as follows:
' 2021 2020
£m £m
Quoted
LDI ] 11.0 -

The pension scheme has not invested in-any of the compariy's own financial instruments or in properties or other
assets used by the company.

‘Scheme liabilities ‘
Changes.in-{he‘present valye of schéme labilities ate as follows;

2021 2020

£m £m
Present value at start of period . 46.7 . 46.8
Actuarial (gains) arising from changes in demographic assumptions (0.9) ,(Ozzj
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising froni changes in financial assumptions: ' 5.8 '14,4
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from experience adjustments - (0:7)
Interest cost ' _ . , 11 14
Benefits paid. : ’ (3.6) (¢%)]
Present value-at end of period 49.6 __46.7

Principal actuarial'assumptions
The significant actuarial dssumptions used to determine the presesit vilue of the defined benefit-cbligation at the.
statement of financial position date are as-follows:.
‘ 2021 2020
%, %
Discount rate . 1.9 2.4
RPI Inflation rate . 3.2 2.6

In the prior year CPI of 2.0% was disclosed as the inflationary measure: For the current year RPI has been used as
the inflationary measure and a comparative provided.
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Post retirement mortality assumptions

2021 2020
* Years Years

Current UK pensioners at retirement age - male. ;21,2 21.4
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - female 23.6 23.7
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male , 225 22,7
Futiire UK pensioners at retirement age - female ) 25.0 25.1
Amounts recognised in the income statement

2021 2020

£m £m
Amounts recognised in operating profit
Recognised in artivifig at operating profit - -
Amounts recognised in finance income or costs.
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 1) 1)
Interest income on plan assets 1.1 1.1
Recognised in other finarice cost ' . - -
Total recognised in the income statement - - -
-Amourits taken to the:Statement of Comprehensive Income

2021 2020

: £m, £m

Actuarial gdins arising from changes in demographic assumptions ‘ 0.4 0.2
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from changes in financial assumptions (5.8) _ a.4)
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from experience adjustinents . - 0.7
Return on plan-assets; excluding amountsincluded in interest
income/(expense) . (1.0) (1.0).
Amounts recognised in the Statemerit of Comprehensive Income (6.49) (1.5)
Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities is set out below:

2021
, £m
Discount rate +0.25% ' (2.4)
Inflation +0.25%- ‘ ' 05
Increase of 1 year in life expectancy - 2'.5-

The -above sensmvxty analysts is based on .a change ‘in an assumption whilst holdmg all other. assumptions
constant, In practice, this.is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may belinked. In practice;.
changes in:financial conditions could well lead to changes in the value of the scheme's assets.
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30 Related party transactions

Transactions between subsidiary members of Guardian Media Group ple are fot required to be disclosed asthese
transacﬁons are fully eliminated on consolidation. In the course of normal operations, the Group has traded on
an arm's length basis with joint venture, associate and other related partles The.aggregated transactions: which
are consxdered to be material are:

2021 2020
Purchases - . - 1.1 14
Sales - . 2.2 " o8
At year-end, balances outstanding in relation to these related parties amounted to £1.2m (2020: £0,4m).

The total transaction for the vear with The Scott Trust Limited is £21m {2020 £9 om). At year erid, the balance
receivable from. The Scott Trust Limited is '£27.4m (2020:-£25.3m).

The, Group paid £102,000 (2020: £102,000) to one director (2020: one director) of The Scott Trust Limited for
services rendered to Guardian News & Media Limited in.the normal course, of business at arms length.

The Group paid £21,000 (2020: £18 ooo) to the partner of one director (2020: one) for services rendered to , °
Guardian News & Medla Limited in the normal course of business at arms length.

The Group paid £527,000 (2020: £537,ooo) in charitable dopations and gifts in kind to the Guardian
Foundation.

-31 Parentand ultimate parent undertaking
The company's-immediate and ultimate parent is The Scott Trust Limited.
‘The most senior parent entity producing publicly available ﬁnanc1a1 statemerits is The Scott Trust Limited. These

financial statements are available upon request from The Secretary, The Scott Trust Limited, PO Box 68164,
Kings Place, 9o York Way, London, N1P 2AP.
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\

32 Inivestments'in subsidiaries and joint ventures’

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 28 March 2021 are as follows:

Proportion of
Country of incorporation ownership interest
Description of shares and principal place of -and voting rights held
Name of subsidiary held business by the group
2021 2020
Channel M Television  £1 ordinary shares: Englanid and Wales 100% 100%
Limited. . -
ContentNext Media Inc  $0.001 ordinary shares United States of America 100% 100%
$0.001 prefshares
GMG B2B Limited* £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100% 100%
GMG Investco 3 £0.00000000492 England arid Wales 100% 100%
Limited* ordinary shares **
GMGRM North £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100% 100%
Limited*
GNM Australia Pty AUDS$1 ordinary shares  Australia 100% 100%
Limited . :
GPC Manchester £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100% 100%
Limited* :
Guardian News & £1 ordinary shares- England and Wales 100% 100%
Media (Holdings) :
Limited* .
Guardian News & £1.0rdinary shares England and Wales. 100% i00%
Meédia Limited
Guardian Newsand ' Membership interest Uriited States.of America 100% _100%
Media LLC. -
Northprint Manchester ~ £1 ordinary shares England and Wales . 50% 50%
Limited* /
OG Enterprises Limited £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100%, 100%
Rawnam Limited* f£1.ordinary shares England and Wales 60% 60%

* indicates direct investment, of Guardian Media Group ple

** GMG Investéo 3 Limited reduced the nominal value of its shares from £0.10. per share to £0.00000000492

per share on 29 January 2021

The registered office for the companies inco}:porated in:

« England and Wales i PO Box 68164, Kings Place, 90 York Way, London, N1P 2AP

« Australia is 19 Foster Street, Surry Hills; NSW 2010 : '

« United States of America is:160 Greentree Drive, Suite101, Dover, DE 19904
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; .
Details of the group joint ventires as at:28:March 2021 are as follows:

‘ Proportion of
B Country of incorporation ownership interest
Name of Description of total  and principal place of .and voting rights held
Joint-ventures shares : business by the group
2021 2020
Ozone Project Limited.  £0.01 ordinary shares England and Wales, 25% 25%

* indicates direct investment of Guardian Media Group plec.
- The fggi'stered office for Ozone Project Limited is'3 Marshalsea Road, London, SE11EP.,

‘Page 62



Guardian Media Group plc

. (Registration number: 00094531)
‘Statement of Financial Position as at 28 March 2021

: 2021 2020
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments 6 18.9 430.3
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 9 1,004.2 808.1
N
1,023.1 1,238.4

Current assets
“Trade receivables 7 28.5 99.5
Cashatbank#nd inhand 8 37.3 ° 28.6
Income tax asset 0.6 -
TInvestments held at fair value through profit or loss 9 C o772 104.5
Other financial assets ‘ J 9 1.9 -

' 145.5 . 232.6
Current liabilities o

~ Trade and other payables . 10 (1.3) (845.6).

Other current financial liabilities. 1 - (6.8)
-Creditors; Amounts falling due Wwithin one year ‘ (1.3) . (852.4)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 144.2 . (619.8)
Total assets less current liabilifies. T 1,167.3 618.6
Deferred tax liabilities 5 (36.4) (5.9
Net assets ekeluding pension asset/(liability) . \1!130.9 . 6129
Net pension (liability)/asset 13 (4.8) 15
Net.assets 1,126.1 614.4
Equity :
‘Calléd up share capital . 12 0.9 0.9
Other reserves ' 0.1 0.1
Retained earnings 1,125.1 613.4
Shareholders’ funds ) 1,126,1 614.4

‘The profit for the yearis £517.1 nillion (2020: £53.6 million loss).

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 6 July 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Keith Underwood.
Director

The notes on pages 65 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 30 March 2020
Profit for the period
Othier compreliensive income

Total comprehensive expense

Dividends

At 28 March 2021

At 1 April 2019
Loss forthe period
Other. comprehensive income

Total comprehensive expense
Dividends.

At 29 March 2020

Other Retained
Share capital reserves earnings Total
£m £m £m - £m
0.9 0.1 A 613.4 614.4
- - 517.1 517.1
- - (5.1 (5.1)
- - :512.0 512.0
- - (0.3) (0.3)
0.9 01 1,125.1 1,126.1
. Other Retained .
Share capital . reserves earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
0.9 0,1 663.6 664.6
- - - (53.6) (53.6)
- - 3.6 R 3.6
- - (50.0) (50.0)
- - (0.2) (0.2)
0.9 0.1 613.4 614.4

‘The notés-on pages 65 to 73 form 4an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies-and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below: These
policies have been consisténtly applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements. have been prepared in accordance with Findncial Reporting Standard 101, ‘Reduced
Disclosuré Framework (FRS101). The financial statements have been prepaled under the historical cost
convention and in-accordance with Companies. Act.2006.

A sep.arate profit and loss-accourit dealing with the results of the company has not been presented, as permitted
by Section 408 of the Companies. Act 2006. The profit for the year is £517:1 million (2020: £53.6 million Iss).
The profit in the year includes-a non-taxable UK dividend of £796;0m (2020:-£nil)) from a subsidiary following a
reduction in its share capital.

The financial statements of the company are made up to the Sunday closest.to 31 March. each year:; Consequently,
the financial statements for the-current period cover the 52 weeks eénded.28 March 2021 and for the comparative
period cover thé 52 weeks ended 29 March 2020..

‘Summary of disclosure exerriptions
The following éxemptions. fiom the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance with. FRS 101:

- 1AS 1 'Presentation of financial statements" information on management of capital has not been presented.
Comparative financial information. in respect of paragraph 73 (E) of IAS 16 Property; plant and equipinent and
paragraph 11 (e) of LAS 38 Intangible assets has not been presented. '

- 1AS7 'Statement of cash flows": a cash flow statement has not been' presented

- IAS 8 “Accounting policies, changes in.accounting estimates and errors'; disclosure in respect of new standatds
and interpretations that have been issued brit which are not yet effective has not been provided.

< IAS 24 'Related -party disclosures": key management personnel compensation has not been presented. Related
party transactions entered irto between two or.more members of the group, provided that the subsidiary which is
a party to the transaction is-wholly owned by such a member have not been disclosed.

« IFRS 7 'Financial instruments disclosures’: none of the disclosures required by IFRS:7 have been pteserited.
- IFRS 13 'Fair value measurement': none of the disclosures required by IFRS 13 have been presented. :

Going concern
‘Thefihancial statements have been prepared on & going concern basis.

Other accounting policies ‘
All other accounting policies are as:per the Group section of this report, note 2.
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\
2 Staff costs
) )
The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:
2021 2020
_ £m £x m
Wages and salaries 0.7 1.3
Social security costs . 0.1 041
Pension costs, défined contribution scheme - | 0.1
0.8 1.5

The monthly-average number of persons employed by the group (including dlrectors) during the period, analysed
by category was.as follows
2021 " 2020
.No. No.
Administration and support . 11 13

i1 © 13

3 " Directors’ remuneration .
This information is shown on page 40 of Guardian Media Group ple annual report and financial stateinents.

4 Auditors’' remuneration

2021 2020
£m £m

Audit of the financial stitements . 01 . 0.1

5 Deferred tax

The deferred tax liability recognised at year end relates to unrealised profits earned from the Company's
investments held at fair value through profit or loss, This is offset in part by the recognition of a deferred tax asset
on losses.which are available to be offset against the future profits.

Deferred.tax asséts. have not been recogmsed where they relate to losses where their future utilisation agamst

profits. cannot be reasonably foreseen. There is an unrecogmsed deferred tax asset at‘the balarice sheet date of
£1.4m (2020:-£nil).
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Deferredtax
Deferred tax assets-and liabilities

Deferred tax movement during the period:

! Recognised in _
other comp- At
N At 30 March -Recognisedin rehensive 28 March
2020 income: income 2021
’ £m £m £m. £m
Pension benefit obligatiohs _ (0.3) - 1.2 0.9
Finarcial assets at fair value through profit » o ' '
< or loss- ) (10.8) (36.8) - (47.6)
..Other jterns.. _ - - - ) -

- Tax losses carry-forwards 5.4 4.9 - 10.3
Net tax assets/(liabilities) (5:7) (31.9) 1.2 (36.4).
Defetred tax movement during the prior petiod:

: .Recognised in
. other comp- At
Recognisedin rehensive 29 March
At1April 2019  income’ income . 2020
£m £m £ni £m -
Pension benefit obligations . - 0.4 (07 (0.3)
Financial assets-at fair value through profit , )
or loss ' (18.8) 8.0 - (10.8)
Other'items. - - - -
Tax losses carry-forwards 84 . (3.0) - 5.4
Net tax assets/(liabilitiés) -(10.4) 54 (0.7) {(5.7)
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6 Investments

Subsidiaries £m
‘Cost or valuation :
At1 April 2019 1,163.2
At 29 March 2020 1,163:2
At 30 March 2020 . 1,163.2
Additions R 20.0
At 28 'March 2021 1,183.2
Provision
At 1 April 2019 7329
At 29 March 2020 ) 732.9

" At 30 Marchi 2020 (' 732:9
Charge 431.4
At 28 March 2021 1,164.3
Carrying amount
At 28 Mar¢h 2021 18.9
At 29 March 2020 gso.g
At 1 April 2019 430.3

Ve
7 Tradereceivables
‘2021 2020
. £m £m

Receivables from related parties 28.5 99.5
Total current trade and other receivables. 28.5 99.5

The trade and other receivables classified as financial instruments;are disclosed below. The company's exposure;
to credit and market risks, including maturity-analysis, relating to trade and other receivables is disclosed in the

financial risk review note.

8 Cash atbank and in hand

Cash at bank

Short-term deposits

2021 2020
£m £m
0.3. 0.3
37.0 28.3
37.3 28.6
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.9 Other financial assets

Non-current financial assets '
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss

{

Current financial assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments,

18.

10 Trade and other payables

2021 2020
£m £m
Trade payables V- 01"
Accrued expenses 0.9 0.6
Amounts due to related parties (0.2) * 844.3
Social security and: other taxes (o) (o2)
‘Other payables : 0.7 0.7
- 1.3 -845.6
11 Other financial liabilities
2021 2020
! - £m’ £m
‘Current financidl liabilities :
l?g‘fivat‘ive financial instruments - 6.8
12 Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares:
2021 2020
No.m £m No.m £m
Ordinary shares of £1 each 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

2021 2020
£m £m
1,004.2 808.1
2021 2020
Em £m
77.2 104.5
1.9 -
79.1 104:5

Details of investments held at fair vahie.through profit or loss are shown in the Group section of the report in note
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13 Pension and other schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Company operates.a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge:for the period represents
contributions payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to £32,766 (2020: £57,209).

Déefined benefit pension schemes
Trafford Park Printers1990 Pension Scheme

“Ttafford Park Printers 1990 Pension Scheme (the "Scheme"), is.a defined benefit scheme, which provides benéfits
based on final pensionable pay. The Scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 April 1998 -and closed to future
accrual on 31 December 2906.

The schéme provides pension benefits payable to members (and potentially their spouses/dependents) for life..
The level of benefits provided depends on the members’ length of service and their salary in the years leading up
to closure to future accrual.. Pensions in paymerit are generally increased in'line with price inflation.

‘The: scheme is governed by a board of trustees, comprising trustees appointed by the company and trustees
nominated by members of the Scheme: The board of tfustees has control over the operation of the Scheme and its
funding arid investment strategies. Investment decisions and agreement on contribution schedules are the joint
responsibility of the Group-and thetrustees.

The scheme assets are held in trusts and governed by local regulations and practice.

On 5 March 2020 GPC Manchester Limited was replaced as the Scheme’s principal employer with Guardian
Media Group plc The.Scheme’s deficit, for accounting purposes, of £4,814,ooo was transferred at the-same time.
This resulted in a loss to the company-equal to the value of the.pension liability at the date of transfer.

. Contributions payable to tlie pension scheme at the end of the period are-£Nil (2020 - £Nil).

The expected contributions to the plan for the next reporting period are £Nil..

The scheme was most recently valied on 1 April 2019. UK legislation requires the trustees of the Scheme to carry
out an actuarial valuation at least every three years and to target full funding against a basis that prudently
reflects the scheme’s expostire to risk. The most recént actuarial valuation for the TPP Scheme was performed as
at 1 April 2019:which resulted in the TPP Scheme having assets sufficient to cover 93% of thé liabilitiesaccrued in
respect of members. Following thevaluation of the Scheme a revised recovery plan was agreed. This recovery plan
covered-a period of 1.year and required a one-off contribution of £2,690,600 to be paid to the Scheme before 31
March 2020. As such the expected contributions payable to the Scheme for the next reporting period are £nil.
The next triennial valuation will be carried out as at 31-March 2022,

Risks

Investment risk )

The scheme liabilities are calculated using a discount rate-set with reference to corporate bond yields; if schpme
assets underperform this yield (all else being equal), this will create a.shortfall. The scheme holds a proportion of
equities, which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term but they expdse the scheme to
volatility and risk in the short-term. N

" Inflation risk
The majority. of the pension obligations are linked to inflation (i.e. the associated increases on the pensions.before
and ‘after retirement are generally linked to piice inflation). Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities
(although, .some caps apply to the level of inflationary increases, which minimises the exposure to high-inflation
rates).
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Life expectancy risk

The majority of the scheme obligations-are to prowde pension beneﬁts for the life of the member (or the lifetime
of their spouse./ dependants). Therefore, increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the scheme
liabilities.

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets. and liabilities recognised '
The amourits recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2021 ' 2020
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 44.8 48.2
Present value'of scheme liabilities ~ * (49.6) (46.7)
Defined benefit pension scheme (deficit)/surplus , (4.8) 1.5
Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:
® 2021 2020
) Em Em
Transfer-of assets - 484
‘Fair value at start: of period 48.2 -
Interest income A 1.1 : 01
" Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest
income/(expense) 1 (1.0) (3.0)
‘Employer contributions . - 2.7
‘Benefits paid ‘ (3.5) -
Fairvalue.at.end of pericd ' _44.8 48.2
Analy_s"w- of assets )
The. major categories of scheme assets are as follows:
. 2021, 2020
' ) ¥ £m: £m
Cash and cash equivalents- 0.3 2.7
Equity instruments ' : 10.0 ‘7.8
Debt instruments 12,9 . 27.3
‘Investmerit funds : ' 11.0 -
Insurance annuity : -10.6 10.4
! 44.8 48.2

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the.company’s own financial instruments or in properties or other
assets used by the company.

Scheme liabilities :
Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:
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Transfer of liabilities
Present value at start of period

Actuarial (gains) arising from changes in demographic assumptions

Actudrial losses and (gains) arising from changes in financial
assumptions ’

Interest cost
Benefits paid

Present value at end of period.

Principal actuarial assumptions.’

2021 2020
£m £m |
- 53.2
46.7 -
(0.9). -
5.7 (6.6) .
1.1 0.1
(3.5) -
49.6 467

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value: of the defiiied benefit obligation at the

statement of financial position date are as follows:

Discount rate

Future pernsion ihcreases

Inflation

Post retirement mortality assumptions

N

Current UK pensioners at retiréiment age - male
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - female
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male -
Future UK pensioners at retirement age~ female

3

Amounts recagnised in the income statement

Amounts recognised in operating profit
Recognised :in~opera'tigg profit’ '

Amounts recognised m finarice income or costs
Recognised in other finance cost

Total recognised in the income statement
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2021

2020
% 9%

1.9 24

3.0 2.6

3.2 2.6

y 2021 - 2020
Years Years

21.2 21.4

23.6 23.9.

22.5 227

25.0 25.1

!

2021 2020

£m £m
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Amounts taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

7

2021 2020
' . : £m £m
Actuarial gains arising from changes in-demographic assumptions 0.4 -
Actuatial (losses) arid gains arising from changes in financial
assumptions 5.7) . 6.6
Return on plan assets; excluding amounts included in interest .
income/(expense) . (1.0) . (3.0)
Amounts recognised in the.Statement of Comprehensive Income (6:3) 3.6
14. Dividends - -
2021 2020
£m Em
Final dividend, of £0.333 (2020 - £0.306) per each ordinary share 03 . 0.3

On.16 March 3021 the Board declared a dividend of 33.3p.(2020:.30.6p) pér share on the ordinary share capital
amounting to £300,000(2020:'£275,000)which was paid to The Scott Trust Limited on 16 March 2021.

15 Related party transactions

Transactions between subsidiary members of Guardian Media Group plc are not required to be disclosed as these
transactions are fully eliminated on.consolidation:.

The Company paid-£435,000 (2020: £450,000) in charitable donations to the Guardian Foundation.

16 Parerit and ultimate parent undertaking

The Company’s immediate and ultimate parent is The Scott Trust Limited.

The ultimate parent is'The Scott Trust Limited. .

Thie most senior parent entity producing publicly availablé financial statéments is The Scott Trust Limited. These

financial statements are available upon :request. from The Secretary, The Scott Trust Limited, PO Box 68164,
Kings Place, 90 York Way, London, N1P 2AP.
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